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1. Opening Statement of the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board 

Dear Shareholders, Clients, Partners and Employees,

We are facing the end of another year and it is again my honour as the Chairman of the Supervisory 

Board of  MORAVIA STEEL a.s. to evaluate the results achieved in the past year, 2008, which was 

divided between the end of economic prosperity and the start of a recession.

In the second half of last year, our fi eld and the whole global economy saw a recession after years 

of global boom in the steel industry. Th e current global fi nancial and economic crisis is not 

a short-term issue to be solved within a few months. After about ten years of crisis in the whole steel 

industry, individual companies and groups in this fi eld are facing an even more serious test at the 

moment. Th e dramatic decrease in sales in the steel industry is a result of the signifi cant problems 

of related branches, such as the machine industry and construction business, with the automobile 

industry being most heavily impacted.

Th e recession in the steel industry is confi rmed by basis calculations available for 2008. According 

to the World Steel Association, global raw steel production decreased by 1.2 percent year on year, achieving 1,329.7 million tonnes. 

Th e production decreased by 5.3 percent within the EU. Th e year-on-year negative trend in individual months started to show in 

September 2008 and the global decrease in steel production was over a quarter as early as December.

Th e production of steel in the Czech Republic decreased year on year by almost a tenth, from 7.1 to 6.4 million tonnes. Th e share 

of production by TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s., in which MORAVIA STEEL a.s. owns a 69.04 percent share, amounted to 

38.3 percent. Th is represents a two percent year-on-year increase of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.’s share in Czech steel production.

Th e export of Czech steel products decreased year on year by 5.5 percent. Th is principally concerned semi-fi nished products and 

pipes, but the export of long and fl at rolled products also did not avoid decrease. On the other hand, imports into the Czech 

Republic increased by 4.8 percent, which was principally due to imported semi-fi nished and fl at products. In spite of this increase, 

the decrease in the debit balance abated to CZK 18,155 million. Th is was due to a year-on-year increase in export prices, which was 

accompanied by a decrease in import prices last year.

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. has been on the metallurgic products market since 1996. In the course of its existence, it has strengthened 

its market position both in the Czech Republic and abroad. An inseparable part of MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s operations is ensuring 

domestic and international transportation, purchases and sales of raw material including other inputs necessary for metallurgic 

production.

Despite the starting recession, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. achieved very favourable results of operations in 2008.

Th e Company sold goods in the amount of CZK 64,171,314 thousand in the past year, which represented a year-on-year increase 

of CZK 3,100,021 thousand. Th e profi t for the past year amounted to CZK 1,489,030 thousand (2007: CZK 3,202,795 thousand).

Th e Company’s assets grew year on year by CZK 824,682 thousand, amounting to CZK 15,090,305 thousand. Fixed assets increased 

by CZK 139,085 thousand to CZK 6,052,153 thousand, which represents the net amount.
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Th e Company’s equity increased from CZK 7,379,544 thousand to CZK 8,551,087 thousand. Liabilities decreased by CZK 313,159 

thousand to CZK 6,514,759 thousand last year. Th e volume of bank loans and borrowings amounted to CZK 1,100,099 thousand. 

As to the added value, the Company noted a year-on-year decrease from CZK 3,165,097 thousand to CZK 2,874,676 thousand.

Rolled wire remains the major component of the product mix. In 2008, sales of rolled wire reached 783,688 tonnes. Th e trend 

of increasing the share of high-grade brands also continued. Th e high level of sold volumes of rails, of which the outstanding amount 

of 247,960 tonnes were sold, was maintained in 2008. Th e sales grew year-on-year by 15,270 tonnes. Billets and continuously cast 

semis, of which 280,871 tonnes were sold, and products of Sochorová válcovna TŽ in Kladno, of which 260 194 tonnes were sold, were 

among products with signifi cant sales volumes.

In 2008, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. sold a total of 2,252,688 tonnes to production (of which 768,302 tonnes were sold in the Czech 

Republic and 1,484,386 tonnes were sold abroad). Countries in the EU remained the main sales area. 

Dear Shareholders, Clients, Partners and Employees,

I would like to thank you all for your loyalty and quality work, without which favourable results could not have been achieved in the 

past year. Such eff orts will help us build and strengthen our mutual relationships in the current period. Th e current crisis should not 

weaken us but should make us stronger and show us new possibilities for development and strengthen MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s, 

as well as the whole Group’s position on metallurgical production markets, for the benefi t of everyone involved.

 Tomáš Chrenek

 Chairman of the Supervisory Board of MORAVIA STEEL a.s.
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Company Profile

Since its formation in 1995, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. (hereinafter also the “Company”) has become a reputable and stable company 

recognised among sellers of metallurgical products both in the Czech Republic and abroad. Th e Company is the majority shareholder of 

Třinecké železárny, a.s. and other manufacturing and trading companies.

An integral part of the Company’s activity is the provision of domestic and international transportation and the purchase and sale of 

raw material and other inputs necessary for metallurgical production.

Th e basic economic indicators for 2004 to 2008 show growth in performance and gradual strengthening of the Company’s fi nancial 

stability despite the unfavourable development of the global economy and the metallurgical industry in 2008.

Economic indicators for 2004 - 2008 (in CZK million)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Sales of goods 50 298 53 105 57 440 61 071 64 171

Sales of own products and services 730 532 550 885 1068

Added value 2213 2 442 2 608 3165 2 875

Financial profit or loss 163 202 506 1 128 -432

Profit or loss for the period 1 553 1 779 2161 3 203 1489

Total assets 11 702 11 739 13 530 14 266 15 090

Fixed assets 4 260 4 349 4 333 5913 6 052

Equity 2 943 4 254 5 779 7 380 8 551

Proportion of liabilities, including accrued expenses and deferred income (%) 74.85% 63.76% 57.29% 48.27% 43.33%

EBIT 2 209 2 379 2 761 3917 2 045

2.
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Statutory Bodies and Management of the Company 

Supervisory Board as of 31 December 2008:

Tomáš Chrenek Chairman 

Ján Moder Vice Chairman  

Evžen Balko Vice Chairman  

Mária Blašková Member

Hanns Kurt Zoellner Member

Jan Sikora Member

Board of Directors as of 31 December 2008:

Lenka Blažková Chairwoman

Krzysztof Roch Ruciński Vice Chairman

Mojmír Kašprišin Member
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Organisational Structure
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Report of the Board of Directors

Despite the specifi c development noted in the past year, 2008 is among the most successful years in the history of MORAVIA STEEL a.s., 

as the Company generated a net profi t of CZK 1,489 million.

Th e Company generated total revenues of CZK 41,065 million, which represents a year-on-year increase of CZK 586 million, despite 

a year-on-year decrease in the volume of metallurgical product sales in the amount of CZK 87,200 tonnes.

Development of the Industry Worldwide and in the Czech Republic

In 2008, the demand for metallurgical products abroad and in the Czech Republic grew in the fi rst three quarters of the year, which 

caused a global rapid growth in the prices of input raw material for the production of steel. Since the beginning of the year, the 

producers and suppliers of iron ores, coal and coke, scrap and ferro-alloys increased prices of products by 50 to 75 percent as compared 

to the prices at the end of 2007.

Th is signifi cant increase in raw material prices could not remain unnoticed on the metallurgical products market. Gradually, from the 

beginning of the third month, that fact was refl ected in the plants’ realisation prices. Prices of products increased every month, which in 

the third quarter of 2008 resulted in the highest prices in the Company’s history.

Unfortunately, this situation did not last very long. In the tenth month of 2008, the demand for metallurgical products started 

decreasing signifi cantly as a result of the coming global fi nancial and economic crisis. Inventory of both producers and business fi rms 

was excessive, with surplus inventory remaining from the previous period. As a result of the decrease in economic activity, the demand 

for purchasing metallurgical products directly from the plants decreased. Logically, this represented serious problems for the producers, 

which were pressured to decrease prices and limit production capacities, principally, at the end of 2008.

Going forward, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Group’s strategy will focus on increasing the proportion of products with a higher degree 

of processing and creating of product chains, despite the anticipated diffi  cult economic situation in the following years. Th e Group 

intends to continue focusing more on products intended for attractive fi elds such as engineering, energy, petroleum and the automotive 

industry. Th erefore, the Company will produce rolled wire for the manufacture of screws, springs, bearings and cords, special bar steel, 

fi nalised processed steel (drawn, peeled, ground), wide and fl at tool steel, and pipes.

In the short-term, the Company’s objective will be to provide for the production of steel at the level necessary to maintain the operation 

of two blast furnaces, even though this material is used in the production and sale of products with low added value. Th e broad variety of 

products will allow maintaining this production up to the moment when demand for high quality steel products increases again.

Trends in the Development of the Steel Industry

– Continuous globalisation of the steel industry and the input material suppliers

–  Based on the ongoing consolidation of the steel industry, the iron ores mine owner BHP Biliton initiated a takeover of the competitor 

Rio Tinto

– Initiation of the process of merging automotive industry steel processing fi rms (e.g. Scheaffl  er and Continental) 

Th e steel industry in the Czech Republic made use of the global boom in metallurgy world-wide and the stable conditions of the Czech 

economy in 2008. Foreign investments facilitated additional economic growth, which was refl ected in the growth of steel consumption. 

Apart from steel for the construction industry, the market noted a demand, principally, for higher added value qualities. Th e situation 

was similar on Slovak, Polish and Hungarian markets, where MORAVIA STEEL a.s. has been very active. 

 

4.
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Development of sales in 2002 – 2008 (in tonnes)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Export 1 369 902 1276 511 1 329 609 1295 144 1489 520 1523 500 1 484 386

Domestic 761918 821 183 900 071 852 334 836 110 816 368 768 302

Total 2 131820 2 097 695 2 229 680 2 147 478 2 325 630 2 339 868 2 252 688

Structure of exports in percentage of the aggregate supplies (in tonnes)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

European Union 61.2 56.8 64.2 73.7 72.6 77.5 76.7

Other Europe 23.3 24.9 14.5 5.8 6.2 3.9 3.9

Africa 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

Asia 1.4 2.5 6.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

America 5.5 6.0 5.2 10.6 10.7 8.4 8.6

Australia 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Slovakia 8.2 9.5 9.6 9.3 10.0 9.8 10.5

100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

Development of the range of metallurgic products sold by MORAVIA STEEL a.s. (in tonnes)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Rolled wire 763 831 778 254 831135 790134 844 570 824 909 783 688

Billets and continuously cast semis 328 882 311793 330 071 265 827 268 699 258 379 280 871

Reinforcing bars 394 990 275 352 257150 287 341 198 877 134 611 112 656

Rails 175 576 182 485 224 851 211090 225 076 232 690 247 960

SCHV Kladno products 220 044 233 705 240 963 247 923 267 392 271071 260194

 UT Bohumín 54 773 57 380 57 450 55 535 59 406 58 000 55 383

Ferromoravie products 65 876 83 581 65 150 72 667 78 750 75 235

Other (bars, profiles, etc.) 193 724 192 850 204 479 224 478 284 777 377 209 357118

Pipes – Válcovna trub Ostrava 104166 104 249 79 583

2 131820 2 097 695 2 229 680 2 147 478 2 325 630 2 339 868 2 252 688

In terms of volume, rolled wire remained the major commodity of the product mix. In 2008, production amounted to 783,688 tonnes, 

which represents a year-on-year decrease of 41,221 tonnes as a result of the impacts of the crisis. Nevertheless, the trend of increasing 

the proportion of high-grade steel brands continued with sales increasing from 65 percent to 68 percent of the aggregate volume of 

wire production. In 2008, the sale of alloyed wires increased by 2.1 percent. Of the aggregate volume of produced wire, 63 percent was 

designated for export, especially to EU countries.

In 2008, the Company reached its highest production and sales volume of rails in its history, amounting to 247,960 tonnes. Th anks to 

its provident business policy and a rather diff erent character of the product as compared to other metallurgical products, the Company 

noted no signifi cant impacts of the crisis. Of the aggregate volume of rails, 85 percent was exported. Germany, Canada, USA, Brazil, 

Switzerland and Denmark ranked among the major export countries. In 2008, demand stayed at the same level in the Czech Republic 

and remained stable due to the fi nalisation of the fi rst, third and fourth railway corridors and the renovation of railway tracks.

Th e production volume of billets and continuously cast semis reached 280,871 tonnes, which represented a year-on-year increase 

of 22,492 tonnes (specifi cally conticasts). A signifi cant volume of continuous cast semis was delivered and processed by Sochorová 

válcovna TŽ, a.s. and Válcovny trub TŽ, a.s. In this reporting period, growing demand from the railway industry and energy production 

sector (namely wind power plants) continued which belong to strategically supported sales targets.

After achieving record numbers in the production and sales of bars produced in the continuous light-section in 2007, 2008 saw only 

a slight decrease (of 4,640 tonnes). Th e course of the year, however, showed that the decrease in production in the machine industry and, 

particularly, in the automotive industry at the end of the year will result in a decrease or stagnation with regard to these products for 

some time. Focus on this market segment, which received a lot of the Company’s eff ort in the previous period, has become a temporarily 

limiting factor. Th e Czech Republic, Poland and Germany are among the main sales territories. 
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Th e products of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. have always ranked among the most popular best-selling products on all our markets. After 

achieving record numbers in production and sales in 2007, 2008 saw a decrease of 10,877 tonnes for the same reasons as with bar steel 

produced on the continuous light-section. In addition to overall quality, clients principally require microalloyed steels, peeled bars, heat-

treated material and enhanced property material.

Th e sales of fl at steel again focused on deliveries to end clients and the demand for special construction projects and higher quality 

brands in 2008, which resulted in an increase in the average realisation price and profi tability of the universal mill. Th e realised volume 

amounted to 55,383 tonnes, which represents a year-on-year decrease of 2,617 tonnes, while export markets with a 79 percent share of 

deliveries remain pivotal and 21 percent of deliveries were directed to the local market.

Th e drawn steel market experienced strong demand and a growth trend in realisation prices in 2008. Th e production and realisation 

of FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. facilitated extraordinary results, surpassing the 85 kilotonnes limit. In the fourth quarter, demand saw 

a signifi cant decrease due to the reasons described above, with realisation reaching 75,235 tonnes. In 2008, production principally 

concerned carbon steels, alloy steels and free-cutting steels with Bi, all this to the detriment of low grade steel. 

In 2006, new commodities, namely drawn annealed and phosphated coils, were added to the product portfolio of drawn steel in 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. In 2008, the target line capacity was gradually reached and a total of 7,376 tonnes were realised, which 

represents a year-on-year increase of 4,017 tonnes. Deliveries are intended particularly for the subsequent production of bearings, MnB 

screws, parts for automotive industry and springs.

Th e operation premises of VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. were renovated and modernised in 2008 and 79,680 tonnes were produced and 

realised. Given the increased requirements in the area of engineering and energy industries, even the most demanding customers will be 

satisfi ed. Th e sales were principally realised on the Czech, German, Polish, Italian and Slovak markets.
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Th e long-term MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s strategy is focused on increasing the share of products with a higher level of processing and 

creating product chains. Th e Group aims at manufacturing products for industries which require a higher level of processing in high-

grade steel classes, such as engineering, energy, petroleum and automotive industries. Th erefore, the Company prefers the production 

of rolled wire for manufacturing screws, springs, bearings and cords, special bar steel, fi nalised processed steel (drawn, peeled, ground), 

and wide and fl at tool steel.

Th e purchase of raw material and other input for TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. and also other subsidiaries accounts for a signifi cant 

component of MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s turnover.

Strategic raw material for production in TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. includes ores, coal, coke, scrap, ferrous alloys, metals, basic 

additives and billets. MORAVIA STEEL a.s. continuously secures this raw material, delivering it within the required time and distance 

at favourable prices.

Logistics and Cargo Transport of Goods 

Th e deterioration of the economic climate impacted the performance in freight transportation, particularly in the second half of 2008.

All freight transportation segments responded to the following important indicators and facts:

– High oil prices in the fi rst half of 2008 (speculative transactions)

– Diffi  cult prediction of the exchange rate development, economic growth estimate and future demand structure 

– Decrease in demand in the automobile industry

Volume of MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s transportation in 2008 – development trend:

–  Decrease in the transportation volume as part of the sale of artifi cial metallurgical aggregates as a result of terminating crucial 

construction activities in the Moravian-Silesian Region 

–  Decrease in realised transportation as part of the services provided to other legal entities – metallurgical production, iron scrap 

suppliers
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Cooperation with decisive providers of additional transportation services principally focused on further improvements of the system 

of valuation criteria for selecting transportation services providers, IT and planning systems, and ensuring the stability of contractual 

relations.

Th e Company’s logistics services focused on additional analyses of the logistics systems of goods producers including the coordination 

activity of the senders and recipients in the course of the continued exclusion activities and construction limitations when building 

transportation infrastructure (principally with projects regarding the dispatch and recipient place of Třinec).

Transportation services project solutions focused on analyses and extending the range of services provided to Hanácké železárny 

a pérovny, a.s. and Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.

Development of the transportation volume according to the method of shipping goods from dispatch locations: 

(the Company’s goods, including transportation services provided to other legal entities).

R AILWAYS ROADS TOTAL 

2008 (thousand tonnes) 8 796 1 538 10 334

2008/2007 year-on-year development (thousand tonnes) -160 -244 -404

2008/2007 year-on-year development (percentage) -1.79% -13.69% -3.76%

2008/2006 year-on-year development (thousand tonnes) +103 +219 +322

2008/2006 year-on-year development (percentage) 1.18% 16.60% 3.21%

Management System and People

In 2008, the Company completely changed employee’s computer technology. Computer performance increased, accelerating individual 

SAP system tasks. Along with this process, a comprehensive project for optimising and centralising printing, copying, scanning and 

faxing was brought into use and signifi cantly facilitated overhead cost savings and environmental protection. In 2008, individual SAP 

system modules were continuously improved.

In 2008, equipment in individual employees’ workplaces was modernised to create a positive working environment, which will directly 

impact the employees’ motivation and performance.

In the long term, the Company also supports improving the education and qualifi cations of its employees, principally through 

specialised professional courses and trainings.

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. itself does not conduct research and development activities but participates in fulfi lling selected Group tasks via 

its employees. Th e Company operates in accordance with applicable environmental regulations.

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. has no foreign branch.
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Report of the Supervisory Board 

Th e MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Supervisory Board examined the fi nancial statements of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. for the year ended 

31 December 2008 based on documentation that was submitted to it and discussed by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s Board of Directors. 

Th e Supervisory Board also discussed a proposal for the allocation of profi t for the year ended 31 December 2008. 

Taking into account the auditor’s opinion issued by Deloitte Audit s.r.o., MORAVIA STEEL a.s.’s Supervisory Board recommends that 

the General Meeting approve the fi nancial statements of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2008 including the 

proposal of the Board of Directors for the allocation of profi t for the year ended 31 December 2008. 

 Tomáš Chrenek

 Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

 MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

5.
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Financial part i. – Financial statements

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2008

Name of the Company: MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Registered Offi  ce: Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město

Legal Status: Joint Stock Company 

Corporate ID: 63 47 48 08

Components of the Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet

Profi t and Loss Account

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements 

These financial statements were prepared on 10 March 2009.

Statutory body of the reporting entity: Signature

Lenka Blažková

Chairwoman of the Board of Directors

Krzysztof Roch Ruciński

First Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
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BALANCE SHEET FULL VERSION AS OF .. (in CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

Gross Adjustment Net Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS               

A. Receivables for subscribed capital

B. Fixed assets              

B.I. Intangible fi xed assets          

B.I.. Start-up costs  

B.I.. Software      

B.I.. Valuable rights          

B.I.. Other intangible fi xed assets  

B.II. Tangible fi xed assets          

B.II.. Land        

B.II.. Individual movable assets and sets of movable assets          

B.II.. Tangible fi xed assets under construction  

B.II.. Prepayments for tangible fi xed assets    

B.III. Non-current fi nancial assets              

B.III.. Equity investments in subsidiaries              

B.III.. Equity investments in associates        

B.III.. Acquisition of non-current fi nancial assets    

C. Current assets              

C.I. Inventories          

C.I.. Material        

C.I.. Goods          

C.II. Long-term receivables        

C.II.. Receivables - controlling entity  

C.II.. Long-term prepayments made        

C.II.. Other receivables     

C.II.. Deferred tax asset    

C.III. Short-term receivables              

C.III.. Trade receivables              

C.III.. Receivables - controlling entity      

C.III.. State - tax receivables        

C.III.. Short-term prepayments made        

C.III.. Estimated receivables        

C.III.. Other receivables          

C.IV. Current fi nancial assets         

C.IV.. Cash on hand    

C.IV.. Cash at bank        

C.IV.. Short-term securities and investments         

D. I. Other assets        

D.I.. Deferred expenses        

D.I.. Complex deferred expenses  

D.I.. Accrued income        
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BALANCE SHEET FULL VERSION AS OF .. (in CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY         

A. Equity         

A.I. Share capital         

A.I.. Share capital         

A.II. Capital funds –     

A.II.. Gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities –     

A.III. Statutory funds      

A.III.. Statutory reserve fund / Indivisible fund      

A.IV. Retained earnings        

A.IV.. Accumulated profi ts brought forward        

A.V. Profi t or loss for the current period (+ -)         

B. Liabilities         

B.III. Short-term liabilities         

B.III.. Trade payables         

B.III.. Payables to partners and association members  

B.III.. Payables to employees      

B.III.. Social security and health insurance payables      

B.III.. State - tax payables and subsidies      

B.III.. Short-term prepayments received      

B.III.. Estimated payables      

B.III.. Other payables      

B.IV. Bank loans and borrowings        

B.IV.. Long-term bank loans  

B.IV.. Short-term bank loans        

C. I. Other liabilities      

C.I.. Accrued expenses      

C.I.. Deferred income      
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT STRUCTURED BY THE NATURE OF EXPENSE METHOD YEAR ENDED .. 

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

I. Sales of goods         

A. Costs of goods sold         

 + Gross margin         

II. Production       

II.. Sales of own products and services       

B. Purchased consumables and services        

B.. Consumed material and energy      

B.. Services        

 + Added value         

C. Staff  costs      

C.. Payroll costs      

C.. Remuneration to members of statutory bodies      

C.. Social security and health insurance costs      

C.. Social costs      

D. Taxes and charges      

E. Depreciation of intangible and tangible fi xed assets      

III. Sales of fi xed assets and material      

III.. Sales of fi xed assets      

III.. Sales of material      

F. Net book value of fi xed assets and material sold      

F.. Net book value of sold fi xed assets    

F.. Book value of sold material      

G. Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating activities and com-

plex deferred expenses

  –  – 

IV. Other operating income      

H. Other operating expenses      

* Operating profi t or loss         

VII. Income from non-current fi nancial assets       

VII.. Income from subsidiaries and associates       

IX. Income from the revaluation of securities and derivates    

L. Costs of the revaluation of securities and derivates    

M. Change in reserves and provisions relating to fi nancial activities    

X. Interest income      

N. Interest expenses      

XI. Other fi nancial income       

O. Other fi nancial expenses       

* Financial profi t or loss –      

Q. Income tax on ordinary activities      

Q .  - due      

** Profi t or loss from ordinary activities         

*** Profi t or loss for the current period (+/-)         

**** Profi t or loss before tax         
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED .. (in CZK thousand)

Share capital Capital funds Statutory 

funds

Accumulated 

profi ts brou-

ght forward

Profi t or loss 

for the current 

period

TOTAL 

EQUITY

Balance at  December                 

Distribution of profi t or loss   – 

Change in share capital       

Dividends paid –  –   –  

Revaluation of derivatives –  – 

Profi t or loss for the current period      

Balance at  December                

Distribution of profi t or loss      –  

Revaluation of derivatives –  – 

Profi t or loss for the current period      

Balance at  December     –            

CASH FLOW STATEMENT YEAR ENDED .. (in CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

P. Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents       

Cash fl ows from ordinary activities

Z. Profi t or loss from ordinary activities before tax         

A.. Adjustments for non-cash transactions   –   – 

A... Depreciation of fi xed assets      

A... Change in provisions and reserves     – 

A... Profi t/(loss) on the sale of fi xed assets –  – –

A... Revenues from dividends and profi t shares –  –   – 

A... Interest expense and interest income –  –   

A... Adjustments for other non-cash transactions   –   

A.* Net operating cash fl ow before changes in working capital         

A.. Change in working capital –   –    

A... Change in operating receivables and other assets –  –  – 

A... Change in operating payables and other liabilities –  –    

A... Change in inventories      

A... Change in current fi nancial assets     

A.** Net cash fl ow from operations before tax and extraordinary items         

A.. Interest paid –  –  – 

A.. Interest received      

A.. Income tax paid from ordinary operations –  –  – 

A.. Received dividends and profi t shares       

A.*** Net operating cash fl ows        

Cash fl ows from investing activities

B.. Fixed assets expenditures –  –  – 

B.. Proceeds from fi xed assets sold      

B.*** Net investment cash fl ows –  –  – 

Cash fl ow from fi nancial activities

C.. Change in payables from fi nancing   –  – 

C.. Impact of changes in equity –   – 

C... Dividends paid –   – 

C.*** Net fi nancial cash fl ows   –   –  

F. Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents   –     

R. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents       
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1. General Information 

1.1. Incorporation and Description of the Business 

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. (hereinafter the “Company”) was formed by a Memorandum of Association as a joint stock company on 27 July 1995 and was in-

corporated following its registration in the Register of Companies held at the District Court in Brno – venkov on 23 August 1995 (Section B, File 1297).

As of 31 December 2008, the Company’s issued share capital is CZK 3,157,000 thousand.

Th e Company’s fi nancial statements have been prepared as of and for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Th e following table shows legal entities with an equity interest greater than 20 percent and the amounts of their equity interests:

Shareholder Ownership percentage 

R.F.G., a.s., nám. Svobody , Třinec  

FINITRADING, a.s., nám. Svobody , Třinec  

Total  

R.F.G., a.s. and FINITRADING, a.s. act in concert.

Th e Company is primarily engaged in purchasing goods for resale and sale, which accounts for 98.36 percent of its revenues. Th e Company is additional-

ly involved in providing domestic and international shipping services. 

Th e Company’s operations are principally focused on Třinecké železárny, a.s. and its subsidiary companies (for further details refer to Notes 4.12. and 

4.18.)

1.2. Changes and Amendments to the Register of Companies 

Th ere were no changes in the Register of Companies during the reporting period. 

1.3. Board of Directors and Supervisory Board as of 31 December 2008

Position Name

Board of Directors Chairwoman Lenka Blažková

Vice Chairman Krzysztof Roch Ruciński

Member Mojmír Kašprišin

Supervisory Board Chairman Tomáš Chrenek 

Vice Chairman Ján Moder 

Vice Chairman Evžen Balko

Member Mária Blašková

Member Hanns Kurt Zoellner

Member Jan Sikora

1.4. Organisational Structure of the Company at 31 December 2008

B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S

S U P E R V I S O R Y  B O A R D

G E N E R A L  M E E T I N G

S A L E S  D I R E C T O R

S A L E  O F  R A I L S ,  C O N T I C A S T S

S A L E  O F  W I R E S

T R A D I N G  A N D  S A L E  O F  R E B A R  S T E E L

S A L E R E P R O C E S S I N G ,  S E C O N D A R Y M AT E R I A L S

S A L E  O F  B A R  S T E E L  T Ž ,  S C H V

S A L E  O F  S E A M L E S S  T U B E S

P R O C U R E M E N T

T R A N S P O R T A T I O N

F I N A N C I A L  D I R E C T O R

T A X E S  A N D  P A Y R O L L 

C O N T R O L L I N G

F U N D I N G

P L A N N I N G  A N D  A N A LY S E S 

A C C O U N T I N G  A N D  B I L L I N G

A S S E T  M A N A G E M E N T  D I R E C T O R

B U S I N E S S  S E R V I C E S

P R A G U E  O F F I C E

I T

P E R S O N A L  T R A N S P O R T
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2. Basis Of Accounting and General Accounting Principles 

Th e Company’s accounting books and records are maintained and the fi nancial statements were prepared in accordance with Accounting Act 563/1991 

Coll., as amended; Regulation 500/2002 Coll. which provides implementation guidance on certain provisions of the Accounting Act for reporting entities 

that are businesses maintaining double-entry accounting records, as amended; and Czech Accounting Standards for Businesses, as amended. 

Th e accounting records are maintained in compliance with general accounting principles, specifi cally the historical cost valuation basis with certain 

exceptions as described in Note 3.6., the accruals principle, the prudence concept and the going concern assumption.

Th ese fi nancial statements are presented in thousands of Czech crowns (‘CZK thousand’). 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

3.1. Tangible Fixed Assets 

Tangible fi xed assets include assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and an acquisition cost greater than CZK 40 thousand on an indi-

vidual basis.

Purchased tangible fi xed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment losses. Th e Company carried no inter-

nally developed tangible fi xed assets during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Th e cost of fi xed asset improvements exceeding CZK 40 thousand for the period increases the acquisition cost of the related fi xed asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off  the cost of tangible fi xed assets, other than land and assets under construction, over their estimated useful li-

ves, using the straight line method, on the following basis: 

Category of assets Number of years

Machinery and equipment   – 

Vehicles  – 

Furniture and fi xtures   – 

Th e gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the diff erence between the sales proceeds and the net book value of the 

asset at the sale date and is recognised through the profi t and loss account.

Provisioning

Provisions against fi xed assets are recognised based on an assessment of their value during the stock count.

Th e Company recorded no provisions against tangible and intangible fi xed assets in the year ended 31 December 2008.

3.2. Intangible Fixed Assets 

Intangible fi xed assets consist of assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and an acquisition cost greater than CZK 60 thousand on an 

individual basis. 

Purchased intangible fi xed assets are stated at cost.

Th e cost of fi xed asset improvements exceeding CZK 60 thousand for the taxation period increases the acquisition cost of the related intangible fi xed 

asset.

Amortisation of intangible fi xed assets is recorded over the estimated useful lives of assets using the straight line method as follows:

Number of years 

Software 

Valuable rights  – 

Other intangible fi xed assets  – 

3.3.  Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-current fi nancial assets principally consist of equity investments.

Securities and equity investments are carried at cost upon acquisition. Th e cost of securities or equity investments includes direct costs of acquisition, 

such as fees and commissions paid to brokers, advisors and stock exchanges. 

As of the date of acquisition of the securities and equity investments, the Company categorises these non-current fi nancial assets based on their un-

derlying characteristics as equity investments in subsidiaries and associates or debt securities held to maturity, or securities and equity investments avai-

lable for sale.

Investments in enterprises in which the Company has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain benefi ts from their acti-

vities are treated as ‘Equity investments in subsidiaries’. 

Investments in enterprises in which the Company is in a position to exercise signifi cant infl uence over their fi nancial and operating policies so as to ob-

tain benefi ts from their activities are treated as ‘Equity investments in associates’.

At the balance sheet, equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost net of any provisions.
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Provisioning 

Investments are provisioned if there is a risk that the fair value of a non-current fi nancial asset is lower than its carrying value. 

In charging provisions against equity securities that are not fair-valued, the Company refers to its detailed knowledge of the relevant entity, the results 

of its operations and available expert valuations.

3.4. Inventory 

Valuation 

Purchased inventory of material is valued at acquisition costs. Acquisition costs include the purchase cost and indirect acquisition costs such as customs 

fees, freight costs and storage fees during transportation, commissions and insurance charges.

Inventory issued out of stock is recorded using costs determined by the weighted arithmetic average method.

Goods are purchased and sold directly to customers and are not physically stored at the Company’s premises. Reported stocks comprise goods in transit 

where supplies are delivered based on diff erent delivery terms (e.g. delivery in port, delivery free on board). Th is gives rise to a certain mismatch between 

the purchase date and the date of sale to the customer, during which the goods are carried as the Company’s assets.

Provisions 

Inventory of material is provisioned in the amount of the diff erence between the cost and the realised cost, provided the cost is higher. 

3.5. Current Financial Assets 

Current fi nancial assets principally consist of cash on hand and cash at banks and debt securities with a maturity of less than one year held to maturity 

(mainly depository bills of exchange).

Current fi nancial assets are carried at cost upon acquisition and at the balance sheet date. Th e cost of securities includes the direct costs of acquisiti-

on, such as fees paid to banks. 

3.6. Financial Derivative Instruments 

Th e Company designates derivative fi nancial instruments as either trading or hedging. Th e Company’s criteria for a derivative instrument to be accoun-

ted for as a hedge are as follows: 

−  At the inception of the hedge, a decision was adopted about the hedged item and the hedging instruments, the risks that are being hedged and the 

approach to establishing and documenting whether the hedge is eff ective and the hedging relationship is formally documented; 

− Th e hedge is highly eff ective (that is, within a range of 80 percent to 125 percent); and 

− Th e hedge eff ectiveness can be measured reliably and is assessed on an ongoing basis.

If derivative instruments do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting referred to above, they are treated as trading derivatives.

Derivative fi nancial instruments are carried at fair value at the balance sheet date. In determining the fair value, the Company has referred to market 

values. Fair value changes in respect of trading derivatives and derivatives designated as hedges of fair values of assets and liabilities are recognised as ex-

penses or income from derivative transactions. Fair value changes in respect of derivatives designated as future cash fl ow hedges are treated as gains or 

losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities.

3.7. Receivables 

Upon origination, receivables are stated at their nominal value as subsequently reduced by appropriate provisions for doubtful and bad amounts. Receiva-

bles acquired for consideration or through an investment are stated at cost less provisioning for doubtful and bad amounts.

Provisioning 

Th e Company recognised provisions against accounts receivable according to their aging categories as follows:

− Receivables past due by more than 180 and less than 365 days are provisioned at 50 percent; and 

− Receivables past due by more than 365 days are provisioned in full. 

In circumstances where there is doubt over the collectability of individual debts, the Company increases the provisioning charge taking into considera-

tion the collateral underlying these debts.

3.8. Trade Payables 

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value. 

3.9. Loans 

Loans are stated at nominal value. 

Th e portion of long-term loans maturing within one year from the balance sheet date is included in short-term loans.
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3.10. Foreign Currency Translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate of the Czech National Bank prevailing on the date preceding the transaction 

date.

As of the balance sheet date, fi nancial assets, current assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the eff ective exchan-

ge rate promulgated by the Czech National Bank as of that date. Any resulting foreign exchange rate gains and losses are recorded as the current year’s fi -

nancial expenses or revenues as appropriate.

3.11. Reserves 

Reserves are intended to cover future obligations or expenditure, the nature of which is clearly defi ned and which are either likely to be incurred or cer-

tain to be incurred, but which are uncertain as to the amount or the date on which they will arise.

3.12. Finance Leases 

A fi nance lease is the acquisition of a tangible fi xed asset such that, over or after the contractual lease term, ownership title to the asset transfers from the 

lessor to the lessee; pending the transfer of title the lessee makes lease payments to the lessor for the asset that are charged to expenses. 

Th e initial lump-sum payment related to assets acquired under fi nance leases is amortised and expensed over the lease period. 

3.13. Taxation 

3.13.1. Tax Depreciation of Fixed Assets 

Depreciation of fi xed assets for taxation purposes is recorded on an accelerated basis.

3.13.2. Current Tax Payable

Th e tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the reporting period. Taxable profi t diff ers from net profi t as reported in the profi t and loss account 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or dedu-

ctible. Th e Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rate that has been enacted by the balance sheet date. 

3.13.3. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 

Th e carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suffi  cient 

taxable profi t will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profi t and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case 

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set and reported on an aggregate net basis in the balance sheet, except when partial tax assets cannot be off set 

against partial tax liabilities.

In 2008, the Company decided to recognise the deferred tax asset for hedging derivatives. Th e deferred tax asset relates to items that are recognised di-

rectly in equity (refer to Note 4.10.). 

3.14. Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 

suff ered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impair-

ment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Th e recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. In assessing the value in use, estimated future cash fl ows are discoun-

ted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the as-

set.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (ca-

sh-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

3.15. Use of Estimates 

Th e presentation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabi-

lities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management of the Company has made 

these estimates and assumptions on the basis of all the relevant information available to it. Nevertheless, pursuant to the nature of estimates, the actual 

results and outcomes in the future may diff er from these estimates.

3.16. Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognised when supplier terms under INCOTERMS 2000 are fulfi lled or when services are rendered and are reported net of discounts and 

VAT.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the eff ective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been declared. 
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3.17. Extraordinary Expenses and Income

Extraordinary items are income or expenses that arise from events or transactions that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the Company as 

well as income or expenses from events or transactions that are not expected to recur frequently or regularly. 

3.18. Cash Flow Statement 

Th e cash fl ow statement is prepared using the indirect method. Cash equivalents include current liquid assets easily convertible into cash in an amount 

agreed in advance. Cash and cash equivalents can be analysed as follows: 

 (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Cash on hand   

Cash at bank and cash in transit      

Current securities       

Total current fi nancial assets       

Current account – blocked funds –  –  – 

Total cash and cash equivalents       

Cash fl ows from operating, investment and fi nancial activities presented in the cash fl ow statement are not off set.

4. Additional Information on the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account 

4.1. Fixed Assets 

4.1.1. Intangible Fixed Assets 

Cost (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Start-up costs  – –  – – 

Software    –   – –  

Valuable rights   –      –  

Other intangible FA   –    –   

Intangible FA under construction – – – – – – –

Total            

Accumulated Amortisation (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Start-up costs  – –  – – 

Software    –    –  

Valuable rights          –  

Other intangible FA   –    –   

Total             

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Start-up costs – – –

Software –  

Valuable rights      

Other intangible FA – – –

Intangible FA under construction – – –

Total      
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4.1.2. Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost  (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Land   – –   – –  

Individual movable assets              

– Machines and equipment             

– Vehicles              

– Furniture and fi xtures       –   

Tangible FA under construction       – – – –

Prepayments for tangible FA       – – 

Total              

Accumulated Depreciation  (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Individual movable assets              

– Machines and equipment              

– Vehicles              

– Furniture and fi xtures          

Total              

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Land      

Individual movable assets      

– Machines and equipment      

– Vehicles      

– Furniture and fi xtures   

Tangible FA under construction   – –

Prepayments for tangible FA   

Total      

Th e Company principally acquired cars from 2006 to 2008.

Th e Company acquired tangible assets that were charged directly to expenses in the amounts of CZK 4,519 thousand, CZK 1,087 thousand and CZK 

3,553 thousand for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Th ese assets are low value tangible assets comprising other movable 

assets and sets of movable assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year not reported within fi xed assets. Th ese assets are directly expensed 

on a one-off  basis.

4.2. Non-Current Financial Assets 

Cost (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Equity investments 

in subsidiaries 

   – –        –      –   

Equity investments in associates   – –   – –   – –  

Acquisition of non-current 

fi nancial assets 

– – – – – –   –  

Prepayments for non-current 

fi nancial assets 

– – – – – – – – – –

Total    – –        –      –   

On 6 May 2008, the Company purchased the 100 percent equity investment in HŽP Holding a.s. (corporate ID 269 55 342) which owned the 100 percent 

equity investment in the subsidiary Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s. As a result of the merger by amalgamation, HŽP Holding, a.s., with its registered offi  -

ce at Dolní 100, Prostějov, 797 11, corporate ID 269 55 342, as the successor company, assumed the net assets of the dissolving company Hanácké železárny 

a pérovny, a.s., with its registered offi  ce at Dolní 100, Prostějov, 797 11, (corporate ID 607 23 246) on 19 September 2008. In addition, the business name 

changed to Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. with eff ect from 19 September 2008. 

On 11 June 2008, MORAVIA STEEL Poland sp. z o.o. was formed in Poland. Th is company did not report any activities as of 31 December 2008. 
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On 18 February 2008, the Company purchased the remaining equity investment of 9.96 percent in Beskydská Golfová a.s. Th e purchase price between 

the Company and Kovopol a.s. was determined to be CZK 16,000 thousand. Th is purchase of shares increased the equity investment from 90.04 percent 

to 100 percent. 

In addition, the Company purchased the shares of TŽ a.s. for CZK 2,489 thousand in the reporting period. Th e amount is reported in the line ‘Acquired 

non-current fi nancial assets’. 

4.2.1. Equity Investments in Subsidiaries

2008   (CZK thousand)

Name Registered 

offi  ce 

Cost Nominal 

value

Owner-

ship 

Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Dividend 

income for 

the period

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Třinec       .       – –

Barrandov Lands, a.s. Prague         – –

Barrandov Studio a.s. Prague     .       –

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. Prague     .   –    –

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Celje     *****) *****) – –

Moravia Steel AG Zug Zug      *****) *****)   –

Moravia Steel Italia,srl Milano          –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria,s.a. Lisabon     .    – –

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o. Samobor    **) **)  –

MS – Slovensko s.r.o. Bratislava       – –

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd. Petach Tikva    – – – –

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Ropice        –    –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec            – –

MORAVIA STEEL POLAND, sp. z o.o*) Cieszyn     –  –

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. ***) Prostějov          – –

Total                

*) On 11 June 2008, MORAVIA STEEL Poland sp. z o.o. was formed in Poland. As of 31 December 2008, this company reported no business activities. 

**) In liquidation

***) Refer to Note 4.2

*****) No data available

2007 (CZK thousand)

Name Registered 

offi  ce 

Cost Nominal 

value

Owner-

ship 

Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Dividend 

income for 

the period

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Třinec       .       –   

Barrandov Lands, a.s. Prague         – –

Barrandov Studio a.s. **) Prague     .       –

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. **) Prague     .      –

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Celje        –  – –

Moravia Steel AG Zug Zug      – ) – –

Moravia Steel Italia,srl Milano          –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria,s.a. Lisbon     .    – –

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o. Samobor    **) **)  –

MS – Slovensko s.r.o. Bratislava      – –

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd. Petach Tikva    – – – –

Beskydská golfová, a.s.****) Ropice     .       –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.*****) Třinec            – –

Total           

*) Barrandov Studio split through a demerger into Barrandov Studio a.s. and Barrandov Televizní studio a.s. as of1 January 2007. Th e change was recorded in the Register of Companies on 1 November 

2007.

**) In liquidation

***) Beskydská golfová, a.s. became a subsidiary of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. on 1 February 2007.

****) Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. became a subsidiary through an investment of a share of the company into the issued share capital of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. on 21 August 2007. Th e change was 

recorded in the Register of Companies on 3 September 2007.
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2006 (CZK thousand)

Name Registered 

offi  ce 

Cost Nominal 

value

Owner-

ship 

Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Dividend 

income for 

the period

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Třinec       .       –  

Barrandov Lands, a.s. Prague         – –

Barrandov Studio a.s. Prague     .       –

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Celje        – – –

Moravia Steel AG Zug Zug       – – –

Moravia Steel Italia,srl Milano        – – –

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Lisbon     .     –  

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o. Samobor    *) *)  –

MS – Slovensko s.r.o. Bratislava       – –

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd. Petach Tikva    – – – –

Total          

*) No data available

**) In liquidation

4.2.2. Pledged Non-Current Financial Assets and Current Equity Securities

None of the Company’s non-current fi nancial assets or current equity securities were pledged in 2008, 2007 and 2006.

4.3. Inventory  (CZK thousand)

Gross Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Material      

– Inventory – raw material      

– Inventory – metallurgical products      

Total      

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company recognised a provision of CZK 6,777 thousand. No prepayments for inventory were provided in the 

reporting periods.

4.4. Receivables 

4.4.1. Long-Term Receivables

As of 31 December 2008, the Company reported a long-term receivable of CZK 130,116 thousand. Th e Company provided a loan to CZECH MEDIA LINK 

in the amount of CZK 130,116 thousand which is repayable in 2009, 2010 and 2011. Th e long-term portion of the loan of CZK 78,949 thousand is reported 

in the line ‘Other long-term receivables’, the short-term portion of CZK 51,167 thousand is reported in the line ‘Other short-term receivables’. 

4.4.2. Trade Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term  

– Customers         

– Bills of exchange to be collected      

– Provisions –  –  – 

Total         

In the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company carried bill receivables provisioned in full. 

4.4.3. Aging of Receivables from Customers (CZK thousand)

Year Category Before due 

date

Past due date Total past 

due 

Total 

 –  days – days – days  –  years  years and 

greater

 Gross                   

Provisions             

 Gross                   

Provisions              

 Gross                   

Provisions               

Receivables typically mature within 30 days.
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Past due receivables: CZK thousand)

Year Local Cross-border Total

        

       

       

4.4.4. I ntercompany Trade Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Name of the entity Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term trade receivables 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.          

Strojírny Třinec,a.s.      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.   

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH, Germany   

Řetězárna a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. –  

Barrandov Studio a.s.   –

TRINEC-CMC LTD   

Moravia Steel Italia,srl – – 

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s.      

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. *)     

Beskydská golfová, a.s.   

Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. – – 

VÚHŽ, a.s.

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. **)

Šroubárna Kyjov spol. s r.o. ***)

 

 

 

 

–

–

 

–

–

Total short-term intercompany receivables         

Receivables outside the Group         

Total short-term trade receivables, gross         

*) VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNY TRUB, a.s was renamed VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. as of 1 April 2008.

**) On 6 May 2008, Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. became the subsidiary of MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

***) Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. became part of the group on 8 April 2008

Th e Company carries no long-term intercompany trade receivables.

4.4.5. Receivables from Subsidiaries 

As of 31 December 2008, the Company assumed the receivable from Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. in the amount of CZK 46,134 thousand as part of 

the purchase of Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s.. Th e loan carried no interest in the year ended 31 December 2008. 

Th e loans provided to Barrandov Studio a.s. were repaid during 2007. Th e Company carried no receivables from subsidiaries as of 31 December 2007. 

(As of 31 December 2006, the Company reported loans from Barrandov Studio a.s. in the amount of CZK 43,885 thousand). Th is loan carried no interest 

in 2006 to 2007. 

4.4.6. Pledged Receivables 

Th e Company has pledged and conditionally assigned some of its receivables under loan arrangements. Under these agreements, receivables are pledged in 

14-day or 30-day cycles as they fall due. As of 31 December 2008, the value of pledged receivables was CZK 799,329 thousand (2007: CZK 835,024 thousand, 

2006: CZK 1,033,252 thousand).

4.4.7. State – Tax Receivables

State – tax receivables comprise a receivable arising from VAT in the amount of CZK 104,251 thousand as of 31 December 2008 (2007: CZK 229,566 thou-

sand, 2006: CZK 201,049 thousand).

4.4.8. Derivative Financial Instruments

Th e Company hedged the exchange rate risk using derivative fi nancial instruments during the year ended 31 December 2008. Th e net value of open deri-

vative fi nancial instruments as of 31 December 2008 was CZK (406,237) thousand (2007: CZK (17,598) thousand, 2006: CZK 12,251 thousand). Th e market 

values of individual open derivative fi nancial instruments were reported in lines ‘Other short-term receivables’ (C.III.9) and ‘Other short-term payables’ 

(B.III.11) at the year-end:

  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Receivables from fi xed term transactions – other receivables      

Payables from fi xed term transactions – other payables –  –  – 

Total derivative fi nancial instruments –  –   
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On the basis of an analysis of the hedging eff ectiveness of derivative fi nancial instruments, the Company charged the eff ective portion of the hedging 

derivative fi nancial instrument revaluation (with highly eff ective hedging) as of 31 December 2008 against ‘Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets 

and liabilities’ in the amount of CZK (392,656) thousand (2007: CZK 2,969 thousand, 2006: CZK (12,251) thousand). 

4.5. Current Financial Assets   (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Cash on hand   

Total cash   

Current accounts and cash in transit      

Current accounts – blocked funds      

Term deposits      

Total bank accounts      

Depository bills       

Total current securities       

Total current fi nancial assets       

Th e following tables detail the breakdown of depository bills held by the Company as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006:

31 December 2008  (CZK thousand)

Issuing bank Currency Amount in foreign 

currency 

Amount in CZK ‘ 

HSBC GBP    

HSBC EUR   

HSBC CZK    

CSOB CZK    

ČSOB USD   

Total  

Interest rates attached to individual depository bills are within a range of 0.02 percent to 5.42 percent p.a.

31 December 2007  (CZK thousand)

Issuing bank Currency Amount in foreign 

currency 

Amount in CZK ‘ 

HSBC GBP    

RZBC EUR    

CSOB CZK    

ČSOB USD    

ČSOB EUR    

Total  

Interest rates attached to individual depository bills are within a range of 2.10 percent to 6.10 percent p.a.

31 December 2006  (CZK thousand)

Issuing bank Currency Amount in foreign 

currency 

Amount in CZK ‘ 

HSBC GBP    

HSBC EUR    

HSBC CZK    

HSBC USD    

ČSOB USD    

ČSOB EUR    

Total   

Interest rates attached to individual depository bills are within a range of 1.80 percent to 5.20 percent p.a.

4.6. Shareholders’ Equity 

4.6.1. Share Capital 

Th e Company’s share capital in the aggregate amount of CZK 3,157,000 thousand as of 31 December 2008 is composed of 1,514 registered shares with a no-

minal value of CZK 500 thousand each, 100 registered shares with a nominal value of CZK 10,000 thousand each and 2 registered shares with a nominal 

value of CZK 700,000 thousand each. Th e shares are not readily marketable but are fully transferable subject to the prior consent of the Company’s Su-

pervisory Board. 
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4.6.2. Changes in Equity 

Based on the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders held on 23 June 2008, the profi t of CZK 3,202,795 thousand for the year ended 31 December 

2007 was allocated as follows: 

− CZK 160,139 thousand was used to increase the balance of the statutory reserve fund; and

− CZK 3,042,656 thousand was used to pay out dividends. 

4.6.3. Gains or Losses from the Revaluation of Assets and Liabilities

Gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities are reported due to the revaluation of hedging fi nancial derivatives as of the balance sheet date 

(refer to Note 4.4.8). Th e revaluation of CZK 392,656 thousand as of 31 December 2008 is decreased by the impact of the deferred tax of CZK 78,138 thou-

sand (refer to Note 4.10).

4.7. Payables 

4.7.1. Long-Term Payables 

Th e Company carries no long-term payables as of 31 December 2008. 

4.7.2. Short-Term Trade Payables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term payables 

– Suppliers         

– Other payables   

Total         

4.7.3. Aging of Payables to Suppliers (CZK thousand)

Category Before 

maturity 

Past due Total past 

due 

Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  

days 

 –  years  years and 

more 

 Short-term        –      

 Short-term      – – –      

 Short-term         –      

Payables typically mature within 45 days.

4.7.4. Intercompany Payables  (CZK thousand)

Name of the entity Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term trade payables

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. – –  

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. – – 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o. – – 

Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. – – –

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o      

FINITRADING, a.s.      

Moravia Steel Italia,srl – – 

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o.    

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s.    

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ,a.s.*)      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.   

TRISIA, a.s.  – 

CMC-Trinec Stahlhandel GmbH    

Total intercompany short-term payables         

Payables to other than Group companies         

Total short-term trade payables         

*) VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNY TRUB, a.s was renamed VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. as of 1 April 2008. 

4.7.5. Collateralised Payables or Otherwise Covered 

In 2008, payables arising from the Company’s bank loans are collateralised by the conditional pledge or assignment of receivables (refer to Notes 4.4.6 

and 4.7.9.).
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4.7.6. Estimated Payables 

As of 31 December 2007, estimated payables principally consist of unbilled supplies of raw materials amounting to CZK 4,768 thousand (2007: CZK 23,582 

thousand; 2006: 33,027 thousand) and unbilled work and services amounting to CZK 36,498 thousand (2007: CZK 59,707 thousand; 2006: CZK 35,359 

thousand) and an estimated payable for staff  costs in the amount of CZK 6,502 thousand (2007: CZK 69,117 thousand; 2006: CZK 7,192 thousand). 

4.7.7. Payables from Social Security and Health Insurance 

As of 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of payables related to social security, state employment policy and health insurance contributions was CZK 

6,513 thousand (2007: CZK 6,079 thousand, 2006: CZK 27,754 thousand). Th ese payables were fully settled as of the balance sheet date.

4.7.8. State – Tax Payables

State – tax payables principally comprise a payable arising from corporate income tax amounting to CZK 54,130 thousand as of 31 December 2008 (2007: 

CZK 144,016 thousand, 2006: CZK 22,006 thousand).

4.7.9. Bank Loans and Debt Securities

 2008

Purpose Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

in CZK ‘

Collateral

Current bank loans

Pre-export and operating 

fi nancing

CZK   Conditional assignment and future pledge of receivables, blank bills of exchange issued 

by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Overdraft CZK   Conditional assignment of receivables, blank bills of exchange issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Operating fi nancing CZK   Pledged receivables, blank bills of exchange issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Debt fi nancing CZK   Pledged receivables, blank bills issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Total short-term loans   

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the interest rates on bank loans ranged between 2.672 percent and 4.88 percent p.a.

2007

Purpose Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

in CZK ‘

Collateral

Current bank loans

Operating fi nancing CZK   Conditional assignment of receivables, blank bills of exchange issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Debt fi nancing CZK   Pledged receivables, blank bills issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Total short-term loans  

Th e last instalment of a long-term loan was made prematurely as of 2 November 2007. In the year ended 31 December 2007, interest rates attached to bank 

loans were within a range of 3.12 to 6.26 percent p.a.

2006

Purpose Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

in CZK ‘

Collateral

Long-term loans

Pre-export and operating 

fi nancing

EUR   Conditional assignment and future pledges of receivables, blank bills of exchange issued 

by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Total  

Short-term portion of long-term loans – 

Total long-term loans  

Current bank accounts

Operating fi nancing CZK   Conditional assignment of receivables, a blank bill issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Debt fi nancing CZK   Pledged receivables, blank bills issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Debt fi nancing EUR   Pledged receivables, blank bills issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Debt fi nancing USD   Pledged receivables, a blank bill issued by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Total  

Short-term portion of long-term loans  

Total short-term loans   

Total   

In the year ended 31 December 2006, interest rates attached to bank loans were within a range of 2.65 percent to 6.05 percent p.a.
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4.7.10. Accrued Expenses and Deferred Income

Accrued expenses largely comprise costs related to the year ended 31 December 2008 for transportation and other services paid in 2009 in the amount of 

CZK 6,189 thousand (2007: CZK 29,884 thousand; 2006: CZK 8,148 thousand) and banking fees and bank interest payable on short-term and long-term 

operating loan facilities in the amount of CZK 1,569 thousand (2007: CZK 2,776 thousand; 2006: CZK 6,482 thousand). 

Deferred income principally consists of income of CZK 16,633 thousand (2007: CZK 24,949 thousand; 2006: CZK 33,265 thousand) resulting from the 

provision of marketing rights under the Agreement concluded with CMC Curych A.G. 

4.8. Deferred Taxation

Th e deferred tax asset is analysed as follows:

Deferred Tax Arising from (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation of fi xed assets –  –  – 

Social security and health insurance from outstanding vacation days   

Receivables      

Unpaid (unreceived) penalty   

Inventory   – –

Receivables (payables) from fi xed term transactions   – –

Total    –  

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company recognised a deferred tax asset arising from fi nancial derivatives in the amount of CZK 78,138 thou-

sand. Th e deferred tax is recognised in the line ‘Gains or losses from revaluation of assets and liabilities’. 

Th e Company decided not to account for the deferred tax asset arising from other temporary diff erences due to its immateriality.

4.9. Income Tax on Ordinary and Extraordinary Activities 

Th e charge for the year can be reconciled to the profi t per the profi t and loss account as follows:

 (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Profi t before tax         

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of   (  in  and )      

Tax eff ect of permanent diff erences   –  – 

Additional taxes of prior years – –  – 

Total income tax on ordinary and extraordinary activities      

4.10. De tails of Income  (CZK thousand)

  

Local Cross–

border 

Total Local Cross–

border 

Total Local Cross–

border 

Total 

Goods – raw material    –       –           

Goods – metallurgical products                           

Sales of goods                           

Sales of services                   

Total sales of products and services                   

Th e line entitled ‘Goods – raw material’ represents the income from the purchases of input raw material for Třinecké železárny, a.s., and its subsidiaries. 

Th e line entitled ‘Goods – metallurgical products’ largely relates to sales of products purchased from Třinecké železárny, a.s., Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. and VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.

Sales of services principally comprise the provision of forwarding services of CZK 627,694 thousand for the year ended 2008 (2007: CZK 653,830 

thousand, 2006: CZK 456,747 thousand). Th e sales of services also comprise revenues arising from remuneration and commissions based on mandatory 

contracts. 

4.11. Costs of Goods Sold (CZK thousand)

Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec 

Purchase of goods – raw materials         

Purchase of goods – metallurgical products         

Costs for transport of goods – metallurgical products         

Total costs of goods sold         
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4.12. Services  (CZK thousand)

Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec 

Transportation costs – services      

Lease of trademark      

Commissions      

Advertising      

Rental fees      

Telecommunications      

Legal advisory and audit activities      

Other services      

Total        

4.13. Change in Reserves and Provisions Relating to Operating Activities and Complex Deferred Expenses  (CZK thousand)

Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec  Year ended  Dec 

Settlement of complex deferred expenses  – –

Changes in provisions under special legislation –  –  – 

– provisions against receivables –  –  – 

Changes in tax non-deductible provisions:   –   

– provisions against receivables   –   

– provisions against goods   – –

Total   –  – 

4.14. Other Operating Expenses and Income 

Other operating income predominantly includes discounts arising from supplier terms, received fi nes and penalties, contractual interest and default in-

terest. 

Other operating expenses predominantly include costs of insurance and costs of the write-off  of receivables. 

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company sold no receivables (2007: it sold receivables with the nominal value of CZK 53,760 thousand for CZK 

53,760 thousand, 2006: receivables with the nominal value of CZK 38,196 thousand for CZK 38,196 thousand) which were included under other operating 

income and expenses in the fi nancial statements. 

4.15. Other Financial Expenses and Income

Other fi nancial income is largely composed of foreign exchange rate gains of CZK 1,513,414 thousand (2007: CZK 683,888 thousand; 2006: CZK 499,438 

thousand). 

Other fi nancial expenses principally comprise foreign exchange rate losses of CZK 1,663,363 thousand (2007: CZK 851,998 thousand; 2006: CZK 545,157 

thousand). Th e remaining balance consists of other fi nancial expenses such as fees under letters of credit, fees under loan agreements, bank fees and other 

fi nancial costs of CZK 5,691 thousand (2007: CZK 5,370 thousand; 2006: CZK 8,283 thousand).
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4.16. Related Party Transactions 

4.16.1. Income Generated with Related Parties 

2008  (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Services Other income Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary          

Barrandov Studio a.s. Subsidiary –     

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary –   –  

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Subsidiary –   

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. **) Subsidiary       

Moravia Steel Italia s.r.l. Subsidiary –  – 

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Subsidiary   – –  

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary       

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary        

FERROMORAVIA,s.r.o Subsidiary of the subsidiary      

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary     

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.*) Subsidiary of the subsidiary       

Řetězárna a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary –     

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate –   –  

VÚHŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   –   

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. ***) Subsidiary of the subsidiary       

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlled entity – – – –

Total          

*) VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNY TRUB, a.s was renamed VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ,a.s as of 1 April 2008. 

**) Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. became the subsidiary of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. on 6 May 2008.

***) Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. became part of the group on 8 April 2008.

2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Services Other income Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary          

Barrandov Studio a.s. *) Subsidiary –  – 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary –   

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Subsidiary –   

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary –     

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary     –  

FERROMORAVIA,s.r.o Subsidiary of the subsidiary –   –  

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s Subsidiary of the subsidiary      

Řetězárna a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – –  

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary –     

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate – –  

VÚHŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – –  

Total          

*) Th e company was established through splitting from Barrandov Studio a.s by means of a demerger as of 1 January 2007. Barrandov Film Studio a.s. was renamed Barrandov Studio a.s. on 1 Novem-

ber 2007.
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2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Services Other income Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary        

Barrandov Studio a.s. *****) Subsidiary –  – 

Moravia Steel Italia srl Subsidiary –  – 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary       

FERROMORAVIA,s.r.o Subsidiary of the subsidiary –   –  

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – 

Řetězárna a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – –  

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate    –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. *) –   –  

SD Obchodní společnost s.r.o. **)    –  

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity –  – 

DEMONTA Trade a.s. ****) –      

Pozemní stavitelství Zlín a.s. ***)   – –  

Total          

*) Associated company of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.

**) Entity related through a common statutory executive

***) Entity related through a common member of the Board of Directors

****) Entity related through a common member of the Supervisory Board

*****) Barrandov Studio was renamed Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. as of 1 November 2007.

4.16.2. Purchases 

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Material Services Other 

expenses

Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary       –   

Moravia Steel Italia, s.r.l. Subsidiary – –   –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Subsidiary – –   –  

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Subsidiary – –   –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary    –  –   

CMC-TRINEC Stahlhandel GmbH Associate – –   

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Subsidiary – –   –  

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – –  – 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  –   

Řetězárna a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – – – – –

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.*) Subsidiary of the subsidiary     –   

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   –  –  

TRISIA, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – –  – 

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – –      

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity    –  –   

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. –   – – –  

Total           

*) VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNY TRUB, a.s was renamed VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ,a.s as of 1 April 2008. 

**) Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. became the subsidiary of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. on 6 May 2008.
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2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Material Services Other 

expenses

Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary       –   

Moravia Steel Italia, s.r.l. Subsidiary – –   –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Subsidiary – –   –  

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Subsidiary – –   –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary    –  –   

CMC-TRINEC Stahlhandel GmbH Associate – –      

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Subsidiary – –   –  

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – – –  

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – – –  

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary  – – – 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –  –   

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary       –   

DOPRAVA TŽ, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   –   –  

TRISIA, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – –  – 

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary – –      

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity    – – –   

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. –   – – –  

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. – – – –  

Total           

*) Barrandov Studio was renamed Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. as of 1 November 2007.

**) Th e company was formed through a demerger, splitting from Barrandov Studio a.s. as of 1 January 2007. Barrandov Film Studio was renamed Barrandov Studio a.s. as of 1 November 2007.

2006 CZK thousand)

Entity Relation to the Company Goods Material Services Other 

expenses

Total

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Subsidiary        –   

Moravia Steel Italia, s.r.l. Subsidiary – –   –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Subsidiary – –   –  

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – – –  

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary  – – – 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – – –  

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary  – – – 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Subsidiary of the subsidiary    –   –   

Řetězárna a.s. Subsidiary of the subsidiary   – – –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. *)    –  –   

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity    – – –   

Total        –    

*) Associated company of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.
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5. Employees, Management and Statutory Bodies 

5.1. Staff Costs and Number of Employees 

Th e average number of the Company’s employees and managers and staff  costs for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2008  (CZK thousand)

Number Wages and salaries Social security 

and health insurance 

Other costs Total staff  costs 

Employees         

Management         

Total         

2007 (CZK thousand)

Number Wages and salaries Social security 

and health insurance 

Other costs Total staff  costs 

Employees         

Management         

Total         

2006 CZK thousand)

Number Wages and salaries Social security 

and health insurance 

Other costs Total staff  costs 

Employees         

Management         

Total         

Th e number of employees is based on the average recalculated headcount. As of 31 December 2008, management includes the Finance Director and Board 

Chairman, Sales Director and Board Vice Chairman, Asset Management Director and Board member, Transportation Director, Procurement Director, 

Sale of Wires Director, Re-processing Director, Bar Steel Director for TŽ and SCHV, Rebar Trading Director, Sale of Semi-Finished Products and Rails 

Director, Sale of Seamless Tubes Director, Supervisory Board Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Supervisory Board members.

Other costs principally include remuneration of statutory bodies paid in addition to basic salaries. 

5.2. Loans, Borrowings and Other Benefits Provided 

Th e Company provides members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board with company cars and other movable assets for both business and pri-

vate purposes (the amount presented in the table below increases the tax base of employees): 

 (CZK thousand)

  

Board of Directors   

Supervisory Board     

Benefi ts provided to the members of the Supervisory Board and Board of Directors also included payment of premiums under the liability insurance for 

damage caused in performing professional duties of a statutory member. Insurance for 2008 for all members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory 

Board totalled CZK 460 thousand (2007: CZK 473 thousand, 2006: CZK 340 thousand). 
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6. Contingent Liabilities and off Balance Sheet Commitments

In 2000, the Company sold 11 percent of shares in the subsidiary TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s. to Commercial Metals AG (hereinafter “CMC“). In ac-

cordance with the sale contract entered into with CMC in 2000, CMC holds an option for the sale of the purchased 11 percent equity investment in TŘI-

NECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. to the Company which can be exercised before 31 December 2010. Th e selling option price amounts to USD 3.36291 per share. 

According to this contract, CMC holds the option for the purchase of other shares which would secure the holding of its investment in the case of the de-

crease in voting rights or share capital. Th is option can be exercised before 31 December 2010. Th e purchase option price amounts to USD 0.56048. 

Th e Company issued a Guarantee Statement in favour of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. in respect of bank loans totalling CZK 630,000 thousand. Th e 

balance of the outstanding loan repayments collateralised in the form of the Guarantee Statement was CZK 317,889 thousand as of 31 December 2008.

As of 31 December 2008, the Company was involved in no legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact its fi nancial position.

On 1 December 2008, the Company concluded a contract for the transfer of shares with Pavel Pěnkava, the lawyer representing on the basis of a com-

mission contract allowing the sale of a 51 percent equity investment in Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. with its registered offi  ce at V Jámě 1371/8, Nové měs-

to, Prague 1, 110 00, corporate ID 268 55 097. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 106,000 thousand. Th e validity of the contract is subject to 

a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) regarding the authorisati-

on of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above.

7. Post Balance Events

On 1 December 2008, the Company concluded a contract for the transfer of shares with Pavel Pěnkava, the lawyer representing on the basis of a commis-

sion contract allowing the sale of a 51 percent equity investment in Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. with its registered offi  ce at V Jámě 1371/8, Nové měs-

to, Prague 1, 110 00, corporate ID 268 55 097. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 106,000 thousand. Th e validity of the contract was subject to 

a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) regarding the authorisati-

on of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above. On 5 February 2009, the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition 

in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) approved, via its fi rst-level resolution, the union of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. and Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. As a result, 

MORAVIA STEEL can acquire the 51 percent equity investment in the assumed entity. 

On 5 February 2009, the Company increased the share capital in Barrandov Televizní Studio by CZK 399,288 thousand. On 25 February 2009, the Com-

pany subscribed for another 89 shares in the aggregate amount of CZK 712 thousand. Th ese shares were paid on 3 March 2009. 

On 18 February 2009, the Company entered in a purchase contract with Čestmír Vančura for the purchase of the 50 percent equity interest in Kovárna 

„VIVA“ Zlín, spol. s r.o., with its registered offi  ce at tř. T. Bati 5266, Zlín, 760 01. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 175,000 thousand. Th e 

validity of the contract is subject to a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Republic 

(ÚOHS) regarding the authorisation of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above.
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Financial part II. – Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2008

Name of the Company: MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Registered Offi  ce: Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město

Legal Status: Joint Stock Company 

Corporate ID: 63 47 48 08

Components of the Financial Statements: 

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Profi t and Loss Account

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements 

These financial statements were prepared on 11 May 2009.

Statutory body of the reporting entity: Signature

Lenka Blažková

Chairwoman of the Board of Directors

Krzysztof Roch Ruciński

First Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

8.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FULL VERSION AS OF .. (in CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

Gross Adjustment Net Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS               

B. Fixed assets               

I. Intangible fi xed assets          

. Start-up costs  

. Research and development     

. Software          

. Valuable rights          

. Other intangible fi xed assets         

. Intangible fi xed assets under construction         

. Prepayments for intangible fi xed assets    

II. Tangible fi xed assets               

. Land           

. Structures               

. Individual movable assets and sets of movable assets               

. Other tangible fi xed assets          

. Tangible fi xed assets under construction             

. Prepayments for tangible fi xed assets         

. Valuation diff erence on acquired assets     – –

III. Non-current fi nancial assets          

. Equity investments in subsidiaries          

. Equity investments in associates          

. Other securities and investments      

. Other non-current fi nancial assets         

. Acquisition of non-current fi nancial assets       

IV. Goodwill on consolidation     –  – 

. Positive goodwill on consolidation        

. Negative goodwill on consolidation –  – 

V. Securities and equity investments under equity accounting        

C. Current assets               

I. Inventories               

. Material              

. Work in progress and semifi nished goods              

. Products              

. Goods          

. Prepayments for inventory      

II. Long-term receivables        

. Trade receivables        

. Long-term prepayments made        

. Other receivables        

. Deferred tax asset      

III. Short-term receivables              

. Trade receivables              

. Receivables from subsidiaries        

. Receivables from partners and association members 

. Social security and health insurance contributions 

. State - tax receivables        

. Short-term prepayments made        

. Estimated receivables        

. Other receivables          

IV. Current fi nancial assets            

. Cash on hand        

. Cash at bank          

. Short-term securities and investments            

D. Other assets        

. Deferred expenses        

. Complex deferred expenses        

. Accrued income        

Control number               



44 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FULL VERSION AS OF .. (in CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY         

A. Equity         

I. Share capital         

. Share capital         

II. Capital funds –     

. Other capital funds    

. Gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities –     

III. Statutory funds        

. Statutory reserve fund / Indivisible fund       

. Statutory and other funds      

IV. Retained earnings or accumulated losses         

Retained earnings         

Accumulated losses brought forward – 

V. Profi t or loss for the current period net of minority interest         

. Profi t or loss for the current period         

. Share in the profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments      

VI. Consolidation reserve fund      

B. Liabilities         

I. Reserves      

. Reserves under special legislation      

. Other reserves      

II. Long-term liabilities      

. Trade payables      

. Long-term prepayments received    

. Bonds issued  

. Long-term bills of exchange to be paid  

. Other payables   

. Deferred tax liability      

III. Short-term liabilities         

. Trade payables         

. Payables to subsidiaries 

. Payables to partners and association members      

. Payables to employees      

. Social security and health insurance payables      

. State - tax payables and subsidies      

. Short-term prepayments received      

. Estimated payables      

. Other payables      

IV. Bank loans and borrowings         

. Long-term bank loans         

. Short-term bank loans         

. Short-term borrowings  

C. Other liabilities      

. Accrued expenses      

. Deferred income      

D. Minority equity         

Minority share capital         

Minority capital funds      

Minority funds from profi t, including retained earnings and losses         

Minority profi t or loss for the current period       

Control number         
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT STRUCTURED BY THE NATURE 

OF EXPENSE METHOD YEAR ENDED .. (in CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

I. Sales of goods      

A. Costs of goods sold      

 + Gross margin      

II. Production         

. Sales of own products and services         

. Change in internally produced inventory       

. Own work capitalised       

B. Purchased consumables and services         

. Consumed material and energy         

. Services         

 + Added value         

C. Staff  costs         

. Payroll costs         

. Remuneration to members of statutory bodies      

. Social security and health insurance costs         

. Social costs      

D. Taxes and charges      

E. Depreciation of intangible and tangible fi xed assets         

KR A. Amortisation of goodwill on consolidation      

KR . Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation      

III. Sales of fi xed assets and material      

. Sales of fi xed assets      

. Sales of material      

F. Net book value of fi xed assets and material sold      

. Net book value of sold fi xed assets      

. Book value of sold material      

G. Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating activities and 

complex deferred expenses

  –  – 

IV. Other operating income        

H. Other operating expenses        

* Operating profi t or loss         

VI. Proceeds from the sale of securities and investments     

J. Cost of securities and investments sold     

VII. Income from non-current fi nancial assets     

. Income from subsidiaries and associates    

. Income from other non-current securities and investments 

. Income from other non-current fi nancial assets   

VIII. Income from current fi nancial assets  

IX. Income from the revaluation of securities and derivates     

L. Costs of the revaluation of securities and derivates    

M. Change in reserves and provisions relating to fi nancial activities –    – 

X. Interest income      

N. Interest expenses      

XI. Other fi nancial income       

O. Other fi nancial expenses       

* Financial profi t or loss –  –  – 

Q. Income tax on ordinary activities         

.  - due         

.  - deferred –  –   

** Profi t or loss from ordinary activities         

XIII. Extraordinary income   

R. Extraordinary expenses 

S. Income tax on extraordinary activities – 

.  - due 

.  - deferred – 

* Extraordinary profi t or loss –  

** Consolidated profi t, net of share of profi t/(loss) of equity accounted 

investments

        

Consolidated profi t net of minority interests         

Minority profi t or loss       

* Extraordinary profi t or loss      

Profi t for the current period (+/-)         

*** Profi t or loss for the current period (+/-)         
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED .. (in CZK thousand)

Share capital Capital 

funds

Reserve 

funds, indi-

visible fund 

and other 

funds from 

profi t

Profi t or 

loss brought 

forward

Profi t or loss 

for the 

current 

period

Consolida-

tion reserve 

fund

Share of 

income of 

associates 

TOTAL 

EQUITY

Balance at  Dec                     

Profi t for the current period        

Allocation of profi t      –     – 

Dividends paid –  – 

Revaluation of assets    

Payments from the social fund –  – 

Impact of changes in the consolidated group   –   

Other – –

Balance at  Dec                     

Increase in the share capital       

Allocation of profi t      –     – 

Dividends paid –  –   –  

Impact of changes in the consolidated group –      – 

Revaluation of assets and liabilities –  – 

Payments from the social fund – –

Profi t for the current period        

Other –   –  

Balance at  Dec                      

Allocation of profi t      –     – 

Impact of changes in the consolidated group –   – 

Revaluation of assets and liabilities –  – 

Payments from the social fund –  – 

Profi t for the current period        

Other   –  – 

Balance at  Dec     –                 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT YEAR ENDED .. (in CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

P. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the accounting period         

Cash fl ows from ordinary activities

Z. Profi t/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax         

A.. Adjustments for non-cash transactions        

A... Depreciation of fi xed assets(+) excluding net book value of fi xed assets sold, 

amortisation of goodwill and goodwill on consolidation

        

A... Change in provisions and reserves   –  – 

A... Profi t/(loss) on the sale of fi xed assets (-/+) –  –  – 

A... Revenues from dividends and profi t shares (-) –    –

A... Interest expense (+) excluding capitalized interest and interest income (-)      

A... Adjustments, if any, and other non-cash transactions   –   

A.* Net cash fl ow from operating activities before tax, movements in wor-

king capital and extraordinary items 

        

A.. Change in non-cash component of working capital –   –   

A... Change in receivables from operating activities(+/-), deferred expenses, 

accrued income and estimated assets

  –  – 

A... Change in short-term payables from operating activities (+/-), accrued 

expenses, deferred income and estimated liabilities

–  –   

A... Change in inventory (+/-) –   –  – 

A... Change in current fi nancial assets not included in cash and cash equiva-

lents 

     

A.** Net cash fl ow from operating activities before tax and extraordinary 

items

        

A.. Interest paid (-), except interest capitalized –  –  – 

A.. Interest received (+)      

A.. Income tax paid from operating activities, additional tax paid for previous 

periods (-)

–   –   –  

A.. Receipts and expenditures relating to extraordinary activities, which form 

extraordinary profi t or loss, including  income tax paid from extraordinary 

activities (+/-)

–   

A.. Received dividends and profi t shares (+)      

A.*** Net cash fl ow from operating activities         

Cash fl ows from investing activities

B.. Fixed assets expenditures (-) –   –   –  

B.. Receipts from fi xed assets sold (+)      

B.. Loans provided to related parties (-/+) – 

B.. Cash fl ows from the purchase of business or its part –   – 

B.*** Net cash fl ow from investing activities –   –   –  

Cash fl ow from fi nancial activities

C.. Impact of change in long-term or short-term payables which fall into 

fi nancing activities on cash and cash equivalents

   –   –  

C.. Impact on cash and cash equivalents due to change in equity –  –   – 

C... Settlement of loss by partners (+)

C... Payments made from funds (-) – – 

C... Dividends and profi t shares paid, including withholding tax related to these 

claims and including fi nancial clearance with partners (-), except for 

dividends and profi t shares paid between Group entities

–  –   – 

C.*** Net cash fl ow from fi nancial activities    –   –  

F. Net increase or decrease of cash and cash equivalents –      

R. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the accounting period         
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1. General Information 

1.1. Incorporation and Description of the Business

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. (henceforth the “Parent Company” or the “Company”) was formed by a Memorandum of Association as a joint stock company on 

27 July 1995 and was incorporated following its registration in the Register of Companies held at the District Court in Brno-venkov on 23 August 1995.

Th e Parent Company’s share capital is CZK 3,157,000 thousand.

Th e consolidated fi nancial statements were prepared as of and for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Th e following table shows legal entities with an equity interest greater than 20 percent and the amount of their equity interest:

Shareholder Ownership percentage 

R.F.G., a.s., nám. Svobody , Třinec  

FINITRADING, a.s., nám. Svobody , Třinec   

Total  

R.F.G., a.s. and FINITRADING, a.s. act in concert.

Th e Group is primarily engaged in metallurgical production with a closed metallurgical cycle. Th e Group is additionally involved in generating electri-

city and providing foundry and engineering services, and domestic as well as international shipment.

1.2. Board of Directors and Supervisory Board as Recorded in the Register of Companies as of 31 December 2008

Position Name 

Board of Directors Chairwoman Lenka Blažková 

Vice Chairman Krzysztof Roch Ruciński

Member Mojmír Kašprišin

Supervisory Board Chairman Tomáš Chrenek 

Vice Chairman Ján Moder

Vice Chairman Evžen Balko

Member Mária Blašková

Member Hanns Kurt Zoellner

Member Jan Sikora

2. Definition of the Consolidated Group and Consolidation Principles and Methods

2.1. Organisational Structure of the Parent Company

B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S

S U P E R V I S O R Y  B O A R D

G E N E R A L  M E E T I N G

S A L E S  D I R E C T O R

S A L E  O F  R A I L S ,  C O N T I C A S T S

S A L E  O F  W I R E S

T R A D I N G  A N D  S A L E  O F  R E B A R  S T E E L

S A L E R E P R O C E S S I N G ,  S E C O N D A R Y M AT E R I A L S

S A L E  O F  B A R  S T E E L  T Ž ,  S C H V

S A L E  O F  S E A M L E S S  T U B E S

P R O C U R E M E N T

T R A N S P O R T A T I O N

F I N A N C I A L  D I R E C T O R

T A X E S  A N D  P A Y R O L L 

C O N T R O L L I N G

F U N D I N G

P L A N N I N G  A N D  A N A LY S E S 

A C C O U N T I N G  A N D  B I L L I N G

A S S E T  M A N A G E M E N T  D I R E C T O R

B U S I N E S S  S E R V I C E S

P R A G U E  O F F I C E

I T

P E R S O N A L  T R A N S P O R T



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  M O R A V I A  S T E E L ,  a . s .  2 0 0 8 51

2.2. Definition of the Consolidated Group

2.2.1. Consolidation Method

Th e consolidated fi nancial statements were prepared using the proportionate consolidation method. 

2.2.2. Names and Registered offi  ces of Subsidiaries and Associates included in the Consolidated Group

Th e consolidated group (henceforth the “Group”) included the following entities in the year ended 31 December 2008:

Subsidiaries 

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Průmyslová , Třinec Manufacture of metallurgical products . 

Barrandov Studio a.s. Prague , 

Kříženeckého nám. /

Creation and production of fi lms and 

other audiovisual material 

. 

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. Prague ,  

Kříženeckého nám. /

Creation and production of fi lms and 

other audiovisual material 

. 

MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o. Bratislava, Palisády  Agency activities . 

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L. Milano, Italy Distribution of metallurgical products . 

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Ropice ,   Provision of sport services . 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s. Prostějov, Dolní ,   Production of leaf and helical springs 

for the automotive and railway 

industries

. 

On 6 May 2008, the Parent Company purchased the 100 percent equity investment in HŽP Holding a.s. (corporate ID 269 55 342) which held the 100 per-

cent equity investment in its subsidiary Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s. As a result of the merger, HŽP Holding, a.s., as the successor company, assumed 

the net assets of the dissolving company Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. on 19 September 2008. In addition, the name of the company changed to Ha-

nácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. with eff ect from 19 September 2008. 

 On 18 February 2008, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. purchased the remaining equity investment of 9.96 percent of Beskydská Golfová a.s.. Th e purchase pri-

ce between the Company and Kovopol a.s. was determined to be CZK 16,000 thousand. Th e purchase of shares resulted in the increase of the equity in-

vestment from 90.04 percent to 100 percent. 

In addition, MORAVIA STEEL a.s. purchased the shares of TŽ a.s. for CZK 2,489 thousand in the reporting period. 

Associates 

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share 

CMC – Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Kürten, Germany Distribution of metallurgical products . 

TRINEC – CMC LIMITED Sandbach, Great Britain Distribution of metallurgical products . 

Since the trading strategy of the associated undertakings is substantially performed by CMC Trading (Europe), the Parent Company opted to consolidate 

the entities using the equity method of accounting.
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TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Sub-Group 

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the sub-group includes of the following companies:

Subsidiaries:

Name Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at 

 Dec 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a. s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and distribution of heat and electricity . 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Locksmithing, smithcraft, tool engineering . 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Foundry industry . 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron and steel . 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. * Ostrava-Vítkovice, Výstavní ,   Production of steel pipes . 

VÚHŽ a.s. Dobrá ,   Production of automotive, metallurgical, engineering and 

foundry products

. 

VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. Dobrá ,   Real estate activities, lease of movable assets . 

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o. Dobrá ,   Mediation of wholesale . 

Šroubárna Kyjov spol. s r.o. Jiráskova ,  , Kyjov Metalworking, locksmithing, production of machinery 

and equipment

. 

D , akciová společnost Třinec Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město, Repairs of metallurgy technological units, and machine, 

electrical and construction works

. 

Řetězárna a.s. Česká Ves, Polská ,   Production of chains and chain products . 

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Třinec – Konská, Průmyslová ,   Production of fi reproof products . 

* VVT– VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. changed its name to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. in the reporting period

Given the acquisition of the 100 percent equity investments in Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and D 5, akciová společnost Třinec, the consolidation group is 

expanded to include these two companies for the year ended 31 December 2008. Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. was included on 1 April 2008 and D 5, akci-

ová společnost Třinec was included on 1 July 2008. VÚHŽ – NEMO, a.s. and ROLLSERVIS, a.s. were removed from the consolidation group due to their 

dissolution without liquidation upon the merger with the parent company H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Associates:

Name Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at 

 Dec 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production of isostatically pressed heat-resisting products . 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron and steel . 

Th e following companies were included into the consolidated group (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Subsidiaries

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at 

 Dec 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Průmyslová , Třinec Manufacture of metallurgical products . 

Barrandov Studio a.s. Prague , Kříženeckého nám. / Creation and production of fi lms and other audiovisual 

material 

. 

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. Prague ,  , Kříženeckého nám. / Creation and production of fi lms and other audiovisual 

material 

. 

MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o. Bratislava, Palisády  Agency activities . 

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L. Milano, Italy Distribution of metallurgical products . 

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Ropice ,   Provision of sport services . 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron and steel . 

In the year ended 31 December 2007, the consolidation group was expanded to include Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. and Beskydská golfová, a.s.

Beskydská golfová, a.s. has been included in the consolidation group and consolidated using the full method since 1 January 2007.

On 3 September 2007, the Parent Company acquired the 82 percent equity investment in Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. through the investment by share-

holders in the share capital. Th e increase in the share capital through the non-cash investment was recorded in the Register of Companies on 3 Septem-

ber 2007. For this reason, the subsidiary Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. was consolidated using the full consolidation method from 1 September 2007 to 31 

December 2007. From 1 January 2007 to 31 August 2007, the entity was consolidated as an associate of the TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. sub-group using 

the equity method of accounting. 

In the year 31 December 2007, Barrandov Studio a.s. was split into Barrandov Studio a.s. (“involved company”) and Barrandov Film Studio (“successor 

company”). Th e equity investment in both subsidiaries after the spin-off  amounted to 99.82 percent. 

Barrandov Studio a.s. subsequently renamed to Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. as of 1 November 2007. Barrandov Film Studio was renamed to Bar-

randov Studio a.s. as of 1 November 2007.
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Associates 

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share 

CMC – Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Kürten, Germany Distribution of metallurgical products . 

TRINEC – CMC LIMITED Sandbach, Great Britain Distribution of metallurgical products . 

Since the trading strategy of the associated undertakings is substantially performed by CMC Trading (Europe), the Parent Company opted to consolidate 

the entities using the equity method of accounting.

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. Sub-Group 

Th e following companies were included into the consolidated group (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Subsidiaries

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share 

at Dec 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a. s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and distribution of heat and electricity . 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Locksmithing, smithcraft, tool engineering . 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Foundry industry . 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron and steel . 

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA 

TRUB, a.s.

Ostrava-Vítkovice, Výstavní ,   Production of steel tubes . 

VÚHŽ a.s. Dobrá ,   Production of car, metallurgical, manufacturing and 

foundry products

. 

VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. Dobrá ,   Real estate activities, lease of movable assets  . 

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o. Dobrá ,   Wholesale mediation . 

ROLLSERVIS a.s. Dobrá ,   Administration services  . 

Řetězárna a.s. Česká Ves, Polská ,   Production of chains and chain products . 

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Třinec-Konská, Průmyslová ,   Production of fi reproof products . 

Given the acquisition of the 100 percent equity investment in H&S PROGESS s.r.o., the consolidation group for the year ended 31 December 2007 is ex-

tended to include H&S PROGESS s.r.o., VÚHŽ a.s., VÚHŽ NEMO a.s., and ROLLSERVIS, a.s. Th ese companies were included in the TŽ consolidation 

group as of 1 June 2007.

Associates

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at 

 Dec 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production of isostatically pressed heat-resisting products . 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron and steel *). 

*) Th e entity was consolidated using the equity method in the period from January to August 2007, and using the full consolidation method in the period from September to December 2007 based on 

the acquisition of the majority investment by the parent company. 

Th e consolidation methods were used in compliance with the consolidation rules of the consolidated sub-group – full consolidation was applied in the 

case of subsidiaries, consolidation under the equity method was used for associates. 

2.2.3. Th e Balance Sheet Dates of the Companies Included in the Consolidated Group

Th e fi nancial statements of the companies included in the consolidated group were prepared as of and for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 

2006. Th e companies included in the consolidated group in the 2005 – 2008 period are based in the Czech Republic, with the exception of MS-SLOVEN-

SKO s.r.o., which is based in Slovakia, CMC – Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH, which is based in Germany, MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L., based in Italy 

and CMC TRINEC Limited based in the Great Britain, consolidated since 2006.

2.2.4. Companies Excluded from Consolidation 

Subsidiaries and associates are not included in the consolidated group if: 

−  Th e equity share in the group is less than 1.5 percent or the share in the net turnover (revenues of account class 6) in the group is less than 1.5 percent;

−  Th e companies which meet the condition set out in the fi rst paragraph for non-inclusion in the consolidated group, thereby not entering into conso-

lidation based on individual assessment, must also meet the group materiality criterion. Under the group materiality criterion, these companies are 

taken as a whole. Th e equity share of this whole in the Group must be less than 5 percent or the share in the net turnover (revenues of account class 

6) in the group must be less than 5 percent. If the equity share is less than 5 percent while the share in the net turnover exceeds 5 percent, the decisive 

fact for inclusion in the consolidated group is whether the revenues largely generated by the company with related parties would have an immaterial 

impact on the profi t and loss account after eliminating intercompany deliveries;

−  Severe and long-term restrictions of the parent company hinder the company’s rights connected to the control of assets or management, or, in excep-

tional cases, if the information necessary for the preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements cannot be obtained without inevitably incurring 

undue costs (that can be documented) or with inevitable and provable undue delay; and

− Th e shares or equity interests in these companies are held exclusively with a view to their subsequent disposal.

Th e above conditions for exclusion from consolidation are eff ective for all the reporting periods.
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3. Basis of Accounting and General Accounting Principles 

Th e Group’s accounting records are maintained and the consolidated fi nancial statements were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act 563/1991 

Coll., as amended; the Regulation 500/2002 Coll. which provides implementation guidance on certain provisions of the Accounting Act for reporting en-

tities that are businesses maintaining double-entry accounting records, as amended; and Czech Accounting Standards for Businesses, as amended.

Th e accounting records of MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L. are maintained in accordance with the Act on Accounting and Financial Reporting ap-

plicable in Italy and the European Union. 

Th e accounting records of MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o. are maintained in accordance with the Accounting Act and Accounting Policies for Businesses 

applicable in Slovakia.

Th e accounting records are maintained in compliance with general accounting principles, specifi cally the historical cost valuation basis with certain ex-

ceptions as described in Note 3.6, the accruals principle, the prudence concept and the going concern assumption.

Th ese consolidated fi nancial statements are presented in thousands of Czech crowns (‘CZK thousand’). Th e fi gures of MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o., MO-

RAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L., CMC – Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH and CMC TŘINEC LIMITED are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at 31 

December 2008, 2007 and 2006 as promulgated by the Czech National Bank.

Financial Reporting Period 

Th e consolidated fi nancial statements of the Parent Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 were prepared as follows:

− Th e balance sheet contains comparative balances as of 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006; 

− Th e profi t and loss account comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006; 

− Th e statement of changes in equity contains comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006; and 

− Th e cash fl ow statement comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

3.1. Valuation, Depreciation and Provisioning Policies

3.1.1. Tangible and Intangible Fixed Assets 

Valuation

Tangible fi xed assets include assets with an acquisition cost greater than CZK 40 thousand on an individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than 

one year. 

Intangible fi xed assets include assets (such as software, valuable rights, research and development) with an acquisition cost greater than CZK 60 thou-

sand on an individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than one year.

Purchased tangible and intangible fi xed assets are valued at acquisition costs.

Tangible and intangible fi xed assets developed internally are valued at direct costs, incidental costs directly attributable to the internal production of as-

sets, or alternatively incidental costs of an administrative character if the production period of the assets exceeds one year.

Th e following tangible and intangible fi xed assets are stated at replacement cost: tangible and intangible fi xed assets acquired through donation, intan-

gible fi xed assets internally generated if replacement cost is lower than internal costs, assets recently entered in the accounting records such as an invento-

ry count surplus (accounted for by a corresponding entry in the relevant accumulated depreciation account) and an investment of intangible and tangible 

fi xed assets, except for cases where the investment is valued diff erently pursuant to a Memorandum of Association or a Foundation Deed.

Th e replacement cost is also applied to tangible fi xed assets acquired under fi nance lease arrangements with an original cost exceeding CZK 1 million. 

Th ese assets are carried at replacement cost and recorded in the statutory books as fully depreciated. Replacement cost is determined by an expert apprai-

ser or through an estimate performed under the Group’s internal regulations.

Tangible and intangible assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and an acquisition cost equal to or lower than CZK 40 thousand and 

CZK 60 thousand, respectively, are not treated as fi xed assets. Such tangible assets are accounted for as inventory and when brought into use they are char-

ged to ‘Consumed material and energy’ in the profi t and loss account. Intangible assets costing CZK 60 thousand and less are expensed through the ac-

count ‘Services’ in the year of acquisition.

Th e cost of fi xed asset improvements exceeding CZK 40 thousand on an individual basis in the taxation period increases the acquisition cost of the re-

lated fi xed asset.

Th e results of the Group’s research and development activities, if designed for trading or resale, are recognised through the balance sheet line ‘Research 

and development’. Research and development results designed for internal purposes are not classifi ed as intangible fi xed assets for fi nancial reporting pur-

poses.

Greenhouse emission allowances are recognised as non-depreciable intangible fi xed assets and are stated at cost, or replacement cost when acquired 

free of charge. Th e use of emission allowances is accounted for at the balance sheet date as a minimum, depending upon the level of emissions produced 

by the Company in the calendar year. An initial free-of-charge acquisition of the allowances is recognised as a subsidy not reducing the carrying amount 

of the intangible fi xed assets. Th is ‘subsidy’ is released into income on a systematic basis as the allowances are used and charged to expenses. Th e sale of 

allowances is recorded as a component of ‘Sales of fi xed assets’. 

As of the balance sheet date, emission allowances are valued according to the EUROPEAN ENERGY EXCHANGE rate. Th e decrease in the valuation of 

emission allowances acquired on a free-of-charge basis as of the balance sheet date is recognised in balance sheet lines ‘Other intangible fi xed assets’ and 

‘State – tax payables and subsidies’. Th e Company does not recognise an upward revaluation of the emission allowances. If there is a lack of allowances at 

the balance sheet date, the Company recognises a reserve as part of ‘Other reserves’ and ‘Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating activities 

and complex deferred expenses’. Th e reserve for the purchase of allowances is released in the following period when the missing allowances are purchased. 
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Depreciation for Accounting Purposes 

Depreciation of fi xed assets, other than land and assets under construction, is recorded on a straight line basis over the depreciation period indicated be-

low:

Category of assets Depreciation period in years 

Structures  – 

Machinery and equipment  – 

Vehicles  – 

Furniture and fi xtures  – 

Software  – 

Valuable rights  – 

Th e depreciation period in years is established in terms of the estimated useful life of the fi xed assets taking into account the operational conditions.

Assets held under fi nance leases are depreciated by the lessor.

If the inventory count indicates that the estimated useful life of assets has changed, the Group appropriately adjusts the depreciation period of the re-

lated asset. 

Th e bulk of buildings and structures are depreciated over 45 – 60 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is applied to temporary structures and short-

term structures (lighting, fencing, energy grids, pipelines, etc.). A depreciation period over 60 years is applied to structures with a long useful life such as 

railway and road bridges, conveying tunnels, and production and administrative buildings.

Th e bulk of machines and equipment are depreciated over 15 – 25 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is primarily applied to IT systems, management 

systems, devices, etc.; the longer depreciation period is applied in exceptional cases to agglomeration equipment. 

Objects from precious metals acquired prior to 31 December 2001 are depreciated based on actual weight loss.

Th e gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the diff erence between the sales proceeds and the net book value of 

the asset at the sale date and is recognised through the profi t and loss account.

Provisioning 

Provisions against tangible fi xed assets are recognised in circumstances where the carrying value is greater than the value in use, which is equal to the pre-

sent value of estimated future cash fl ows expected to arise from the continuing use of fi xed assets.

Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suff e-

red an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 

loss (if any). 

3.1.2. Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-current fi nancial assets principally consist of equity investments, securities and equity investments available for sale and long-term term deposits. 

Valuation 

Securities and equity investments are carried at cost upon acquisition. Th e cost of securities or equity investments includes direct costs of acquisition, 

such as fees and commissions paid to brokers, advisors and stock exchanges. Financial assets acquired prior to 1 January 2002 are stated at purchase cost.

At the balance sheet date, the Group records:

Equity investments at cost less any provisions against equity investments.

Available-for-sale securities are valued pursuant to the Accounting Act (Section 27) at fair value, determined by reference to the market value or a rea-

sonable estimate. If the determination of fair value is not practicable, the securities are valued at cost.

At the balance sheet date, changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are recorded on the balance sheet as ‘Other non-current securities 

and equity investments’ and ‘Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets’. A deferred tax liability is determined in respect of the revaluation diff eren-

ce where the value of available-for-sale securities increases, and is recorded through the lines ‘Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets’ and ‘Defer-

red tax liability’.

Upon sale or any other disposal, they are valued at the weighted average cost.

Investments in enterprises in which the Group has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain benefi ts from their activities 

are treated as ‘Equity investments in subsidiaries’. 

Investments in enterprises in which the Group is in a position to exercise signifi cant infl uence over their fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain 

benefi ts from their activities are treated as ‘Equity investments in associates’.

Provisioning against Equity Investments

Investments are provisioned if there is a risk that the fair value of an unconsolidated equity investment is lower than its carrying value. 

¨In charging provisions against equity securities that are not fair valued, the Group refers to its detailed knowledge of the relevant entity, the results of 

its operations and refl ects its interest in the entity’s equity.
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3.1.3. Inventory 

Valuation 

Purchased inventory is valued at acquisition costs. Acquisition costs include the purchase cost and indirect acquisition costs such as customs fees, freight 

costs and storage fees during transportation, commissions and insurance charges. 

Inventory is issued out of stock at costs determined using the weighted arithmetic average method.

Internally developed inventory is valued at full operating costs established based upon a costing formula refl ecting annual planned costings. Th e prices 

are determined on the basis of an annual fi nancial plan and remain unchanged throughout the reporting period.

Internally developed inventory is revalued every 1 January of the current year in line with the costing made according to the approved fi nancial plan. 

During the reporting period, the Company analysed the internally produced inventory by comparing the valuation of own costs according to planned 

(planned costing) and actual costs. If the diff erence in valuation according to actual costs is greater than the valuation according to the planned own costs, 

the diff erence from the revaluation of internally produced inventory is refl ected in fi nancial accounting records only on the accounts of the general ledger 

– ‘Changes in internally produced inventory’ with a corresponding entry to ‘Internally produced inventory’. In the contrary case, (if the diff erence in va-

luation according to the planned own costs is greater than the valuation according to actual own costs) the inventory is not remeasured and the diff erence 

is accounted for through the recognition of a provision against internally produced inventory. 

Provisioning 

Provisions against the inventory of material are made in respect of inventory with low or no movement and a very low likelihood for processing following 

an individual analysis. 

Provisions against the inventory of fi nished products and semi-fi nished products are charged based on the analysis of movement, selling prices and re-

alisability. 

3.1.4. Receivables 

Upon origination, receivables are stated at their nominal value as subsequently reduced by appropriate provisions for doubtful and bad amounts.

Provisioning 

Th e Group recognises provisions against receivables, the recoverability of which is doubtful. Tax deductible provisions against receivables are made pur-

suant to the Income Taxes Act and the Provisioning Act. 

Non-tax deductible provisions are created as follows:

(a) Receivables past due over 360 days are provisioned in full; and 

(b) Receivables past due over 180 days but less than 360 days are provisioned at 50 percent.

In circumstances where there is doubt concerning the collectability of individual debts, the Group increases the provisioning charge taking into consi-

deration the collateral held in support of these outstanding balances. 

Th e Group recognises provisions against interest-free long-term receivables that arose as a result of the sale of business parts. Th is provisioning charge 

is calculated as equal to the diff erence between the nominal value and the discounted value of repayments of these receivables.

3.1.5. Current Financial Assets 

Current fi nancial assets principally consist of cash on hand and cash at bank and short-term debt securities with a maturity of less than one year and other 

securities available for sale. 

Current fi nancial assets are carried at cost upon acquisition.

3.1.6. Payables 

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value. Long-term bills of exchange to be settled are stated at their nominal value. Interest on these bills is 

accrued over the term to their maturity.

3.1.7. Loans 

Valuation 

Loans are reported at nominal value. Th e portion of long-term loans maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and revolving loans which are 

regularly rolled over to the following period are included in short-term loans. 

Th e value of debt securities is increased to refl ect outstanding interest expense which is recorded as a component of issued current debt securities in 

the balance sheet.

3.1.8. Reserves 

Th e Group creates other reserves to provide for future risks and losses arising from business activities known at the balance sheet date. In addition, the 

Group records tax allowable reserves for repairs of tangible fi xed assets in accordance with the Provisioning Act, and a reserve for restoration and mainte-

nance of a dump site and clean-up after termination of the operation of the site in accordance with Regulation of the Environmental Ministry No. 340/97 

Coll. If the reserves are not drawn within the statutory period, they are released.
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3.2. Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies conducted during the year are translated using the exchange rate of the Czech National Bank prevailing on the date 

preceding the transaction date.

Financial assets denominated in foreign currencies (foreign currency cash) are translated into Czech crowns using the fi xed monthly exchange rate as 

notifi ed by the Czech National Bank as of the fi rst day of the month in which they were recorded. 

As of the balance sheet date, fi nancial assets, receivables, payables, loans, and fi nancial borrowings denominated in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate as notifi ed by the Czech National Bank as of that date, and any resulting foreign exchange diff erences are recognised as income or 

expense through the profi t and loss account as appropriate.

As of the balance sheet date, non-current fi nancial assets are translated using the exchange rate as notifi ed by the Czech National Bank as of that date. 

Foreign exchange rate diff erences arising from fair-valued securities and equity investments are reported as a component of the carrying value of the secu-

rity.

Th e fi nancial statements of MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o., MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L., CMC – Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH and CMC – TRINEC LIMI-

TED are translated using the exchange rates of the Czech National Bank prevailing at 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006. 

3.3. Finance Leases 

A fi nance lease is the acquisition of a tangible fi xed asset such that, over or after the contractual lease term, ownership title to the asset transfers from the 

lessor to the lessee; pending the transfer of title, the lessee makes lease payments to the lessor for the asset that are charged to expenses. 

Th e initial lump-sum payment related to assets acquired under fi nance leases are amortised and expensed over the lease period.

3.4. Taxation 

Depreciation of Fixed Assets for Tax Purposes 

Depreciation of fi xed assets is recorded on an accelerated basis for tax purposes under Section 32 of Act No. 586/92 Coll., with the exception of assets used 

in the ‘Univerzální trať Bohumín’ plant and assets of Slévárny Třinec, a.s., which are depreciated using the straight line method.

Current Tax Payable 

Th e tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the reporting period. Taxable profi t diff ers from net profi t as reported in the profi t and loss account 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or dedu-

ctible. Th e Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 

Under the liability method, deferred tax is calculated at the income tax rate that is expected to apply in the period when the tax liability is settled.

Th e balance sheet liability method focuses on temporary diff erences which are diff erences between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying 

amount in the balance sheet. Th e tax base of an asset or liability is the amount that will be deductible for tax purposes in the future.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profi t and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case 

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

3.5. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs arising from loans are expensed irrespective of the purpose for which they were drawn.

3.6. Derivative Financial Instruments 

Th e Group designates derivative fi nancial instruments as either trading or hedging. Th e Group’s criteria for a derivative instrument to be accounted for 

as a hedge are as follows: 

−  At the inception of the hedge, the documentation identifi es the hedged item and the hedging instrument, defi nes the risk that is being hedged and the 

approach to establishing and documenting whether the hedge is eff ective, and the hedging relationship is formally documented; 

− Th e hedge is highly eff ective (that is, within a range of 80 percent to 125 percent); and 

− Th e hedge eff ectiveness can be measured reliably and is assessed on an ongoing basis.

If derivative instruments do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting referred to above, they are treated as trading derivatives.

Derivative fi nancial instruments are carried at fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value changes in respect of trading derivatives and derivatives 

hedging the fair value of assets and liabilities are recognised either as an expense or income from derivative transactions as appropriate. Fair value chan-

ges of derivatives designated as cash fl ow hedges are recognised as gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities.

3.7. Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognised when delivery terms under INCOTERMS 2000 are fulfi lled or when services are rendered and are reported net of discounts and 

VAT.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the eff ective interest rate applicable. 

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been declared. 
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3.8. Use of Estimates 

Th e presentation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabi-

lities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management of the Company has made 

these estimates and assumptions on the basis of all the relevant information available to it. Nevertheless, pursuant to the nature of estimates, the actual 

results and outcomes in the future may diff er from these estimates.

3.9. Extraordinary Expenses and Income

Extraordinary items are income or expenses that arise from events or transactions that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the Group as well 

as income or expenses from events or transactions that are not expected to recur frequently or regularly. 

3.10. Grants 

Th e Group receives operating grants. Th e funds drawn are charged to expenses and operating grants received are credited to income on an accruals ba-

sis (refer to Note 5.23). In addition, the Group receives grants to fund the acquisition of fi xed assets and these grants reduce the cost of the related assets.

3.11. Research and Development Expenditure 

Research and development expenditure is capitalised as part of cost and posted to the acquisition of tangible or intangible fi xed assets if the research and 

development projects result in fi xed assets (tangible and intangible). Th e output of a research project is capitalised on the basis of the results of opponent 

proceedings.

3.12. Consolidation Rules 

Th e individual items of the balance sheets and the profi t and loss accounts of subsidiaries consolidated under the full consolidation method were added up 

in total amounts with the balance sheet and the profi t and loss account of the parent company. Further, fi nancial investments of the parent company were 

eliminated against acquired equity, intercompany supplies, receivables and payables, including profi ts from the sale of the fi xed assets realised among the 

consolidated group companies, and profi t margins relating to inventories not yet consumed. 

Under the equity consolidation method, fi nancial investments of the parent company were eliminated from the balance sheet against acquired equity. 

Th e assets in the consolidated balance sheet included the item ‘Securities and investments under equity accounting’, whose balance is calculated as the 

share of the equity of associates. Th is item was adjusted by a portion of the profi t margin, refl ecting the share in the equity of an associate, on intercom-

pany supplies of inventories not yet consumed. Liabilities of the consolidated balance sheet included the item ‘Share in the profi t/loss of equity accounted 

investments’ which represents the parent company’s share in the current period’s results, and the ‘Consolidation reserve fund’ comprising an associate’s 

accumulated profi t/loss of previous years. 

Th e assets and liabilities of companies acquired and included in the consolidated group subsequent to 1 January 2003 were remeasured at fair value in 

accordance with the accounting policies for consolidation.

Th e consolidated fi nancial statements were prepared using the proportionate consolidation method.

Th e fi nancial statements for the years ended 31 December 2006 – 2008 prepared by the companies included in the consolidated group, as well as the fi -

nancial statements of subsidiaries and associates not included in the consolidated group that were received by the Company as of the consolidated fi nan-

cial statement preparation date are available in the registered offi  ce of the Parent Company.

Consolidation rules for 2006 – 2008 (defi nition of the consolidated group, transformation of data from individual fi nancial statements into the conso-

lidated fi nancial statements) are available in the registered offi  ce of the Parent Company. 

3.13. Cash Flow Statement 

For cash fl ow purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash and duty stamps, cash at bank except for deposits with maturity greater than three 

months, and current liquid assets easily convertible into cash in an amount agreed in advance where no signifi cant changes of value in time are expected.

 (CZK thousand)

  

Total current fi nancial assets         

Total cash and cash equivalents not included in cash fl ow –  –  – 

Cash and cash equivalents         

Comments on the 2008 Cash Flow Statement:

In the year ended 31 December 2008, special-purpose funds predominantly including the opening of a special purpose account relating to the loan from 

the bank of CZK 4,759 thousand as of 31 December 2008 are not treated as cash equivalents for cash fl ow reporting purposes. 

In the year ended 31 December 2007, special-purpose funds predominantly including the opening of a special-purpose account in connection with the 

received state aid of CZK 35,444 thousand as of 31 December 2007 are not treated as cash equivalents for cash fl ow reporting purposes. 

Th e change in the balance of current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2006 as compared to the balance sheet is principally associated with the opening 

of a special-purpose account in connection with the received state aid of CZK 246,216 thousand and a depository bill of exchange of CZK 30,000 thou-

sand as of 31 December 2006. 
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4. Analysis of Impacts on Profit/Loss

4.1. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2008

4.1.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.   

Current year’s profi t made by MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o.

Share of current year’s profi t made by Barrandov Studio a.s.  

Share of current year’s profi t made by Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. – 

Share of current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L.  

Share of current year’s profi t made by the TŽ, a.s. consolidation group  

Share of current year’s profi t made by Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.  

Share of current year’s profi t made by Beskydská golfová, a.s. – 

Share of current year’s profi t made by Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s.  

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments  

Adjustments within full consolidation (see Note ...)  

Adjustments within the equity method (see Note ...) – 

Consolidated profi t    

4.1.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from unrealised intercompany inventory, including the deferred tax impact   

Elimination of provision against inventory, including the deferred tax impact –  

Elimination of the provision against investment in Barrandov Studio a.s.   

Elimination of the provision against investment in Beskydská golfová, a.s.   

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Barrandov Studio a.s. –  

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. –  

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Beskydská golfová, a.s. – 

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s. –  

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. – 

Elimination of dividends declared by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA, S.R.L. –  

Elimination of sales –  

Refl ection of the missing tax for  –  

Total adjustments   

4.1.3. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from sales of unrealised inventory among associates, including the deferred tax impact – 

Total adjustments – 

4.2. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2007

4.2.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.     

Current year’s profi t made by MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o.   

Share of current year’s profi t made by Barrandov Studio a.s.    

Share of current year’s profi t made by Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s.   

Share of current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L.    

Share of current year’s profi t made by Beskydská golfová, a.s.    

Share of current year’s profi t made by Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. for the period from  September    

Share of current year’s profi t made by the TŽ, a.s. consolidation group     

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments    

Adjustments within full consolidation (see Note ...) –  

Adjustments within the equity method (see Note ...)  –  

Consolidated profi t    
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4.2.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from unrealised intercompany inventory, including the deferred tax impact  –  

Elimination of provision against inventory, including the deferred tax impact  –  

Elimination of the provision against investment in Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s.    

Elimination of the provision against investment in Barrandov Studio a.s.  

Elimination of the provision against investment in Beskydská golfová, a.s.    

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Barrandov Studio a.s.  –  

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.  –  

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Beskydská golfová, a.s.  – 

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.    

Elimination of dividends declared by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA, S.R.L.  –  

Elimination of dividends declared by TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.  –   

Elimination of sales  

Total adjustments –  

4.2.3. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from sales of unrealised inventory among associates, including the deferred tax impact – 

Total adjustments – 

4.3. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2006

4.3.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2006

 (CZK thousand)

Current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.   

Current year’s profi t made by MS – SLOVENSKO s.r.o. 

Share of current year’s profi t made by Barrandov Studio a.s.  

Share of current year’s profi t made by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L.  

Share of current year’s profi t made by the TŽ, a.s. Sub-group   

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments  

Adjustments within full consolidation (see Note ...) – 

Adjustments within the equity method (see Note ...) – 

Consolidated profi t   

4.3.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from unrealised intercompany inventory, including the deferred tax impact – 

Elimination of provision against inventory, including the deferred tax impact – 

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of Barrandov Studio a.s. – 

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA, S.R.L. 

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.  

Elimination of dividends declared by MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA, S.R.L. – 

Elimination of dividends declared by TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. – 

Total adjustments – 

4.3.3. Adjustments within the Equity Method for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from sales of unrealised inventory among associates, including the deferred tax impact – 

Total adjustments – 
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5. Additional Information on the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

5.1. Intangible Fixed Assets 

Cost  (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



 New 

acquisi-

tions 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 

 

 New 

acquisi-

tions 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 

 

Research and development – – – – – – – – –

Start-up costs  – –    – – 

Software   –              

Valuable rights   –             

Other intangible FA   –                

Intangible FA under construction   –       –      

Prepayments for intangible FA – – – – – – – – –

Total   –                

 (CZK thousand)

 New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec  

Research and development –   –  

Start-up costs – – – 

Software        

Valuable rights        

Other intangible FA          

Intangible FA under construction      

Prepayments for intangible FA –  – 

Total          

Accumulated Amortisation and Provisions  (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec 



 New 

acquisi-

tions 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 

 

 New 

acquisi-

tions 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 

 

Research and development – – – – – – – – –

Start-up costs  –     – – 

Software   –              

Valuable rights   –             

Other intangible FA   – – –        

Intangible FA under construction  –  –  – –  

Prepayments for intangible FA – – – – – – – – –

Total   –              

  (CZK thousand)

New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec  

Research and development –  – 

Start-up costs – – – 

Software        

Valuable rights        

Other intangible FA        

Intangible FA under construction – –  

Prepayments for intangible FA – – – –

Total        

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Research and development – – –  

Start-up costs – – – –

Software        

Valuable rights        

Other intangible FA       

Intangible FA under construction        

Prepayments for intangible FA – –   

Total        
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Th e column ‘new acquisitions’ in 2007 in the above tables of intangible fi xed asset movements refl ects the expansion of the consolidated group to include 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., Beskydská golfová, a.s., H&S PROGRESS s.r.o., VÚHŽ a.s., VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. and ROLLSERVIS a.s., and new acquisitions in 

2008 refl ect the expansion by Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s., Šroubárna Kyjov spol. s.r.o. and D5, akciová společnost Třinec.

Amortisation of Intangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Amortisation of intangible fi xed assets charged to expenses amounted to CZK 57,717 thousand, CZK 34,663 thousand and CZK 25,221 thousand for the ye-

ars ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Aggregate Amount of Low Value Intangible Fixed Assets Maintained Off -Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate amount of low value intangible fi xed assets not included in the balance sheet totalled CZK 32,577 thousand, CZK 28,542 thousand and CZK 

21,050 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

5.2. Tangible Fixed Assets 

Cost (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec 

Land       

Structures          

Individual movable assets          

Other tangible FA       

Tangible FA under construction          

Prepayments        

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –  – – – 

Total            

 (CZK thousand)

New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec 

Land       

Structures         

Individual movable assets          

Other tangible FA       

Tangible FA under construction           

Prepayments        

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets   – –  

Total            

 (CZK thousand)

New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec 

Land         

Structures         

Individual movable assets          

Other tangible FA      

Tangible FA under construction           

Prepayments        

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –      

Total            

Accumulated Depreciation and Provisions  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec 

Land – – – –

Structures           

Individual movable assets           

Other tangible FA       

Tangible FA under construction       

Prepayments    

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –  – – – 

Total           
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 (CZK thousand)

New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec 

Land – – – –

Structures         

Individual movable assets          

Other tangible FA      

Tangible FA under construction      

Prepayments – –  

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets        

Total          

 (CZK thousand)

New acquisitions Additions Disposals Balance at  Dec  

Land – – – –

Structures         

Individual movable assets          

Other tangible FA      

Tangible FA under construction –     

Prepayments –  – 

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –      

Total          

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Net book value Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Land          

Structures            

Individual movable assets            

Other tangible FA        

Tangible FA under construction          

Prepayments made for tangible FA        

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets – – – –

Total            

Th e column ‘new acquisitions’ in 2007 in the above tables of tangible fi xed asset movements refl ects the expansion of the consolidated group to include 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., Beskydská golfová, a.s., H&S PROGRESS s.r.o., VÚHŽ a.s., VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. and ROLLSERVIS a.s., and new acquisitions in 

2008 refl ect the expansion by Hanácké železárny a pérovny a.s., Šroubárna Kyjov spol. s.r.o. and D5, akciová společnost Třinec.

Principal additions to tangible fi xed assets for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows:

 (CZK thousand)

Garett winding line  

Equipment for pig iron desulphurisation  

Filtration equipment for the agglomeration  

Sakamura press  

SHUMAG III B/ combined drawing machine  

Renovation and modernisation of Big Mannesman  

Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Depreciation of tangible fi xed assets charged to expenses amounted to CZK 1,611,897 thousand, CZK 1,437,038 thousand, CZK 1,301,172 thousand for the 

years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Aggregate Amount of Low Value Tangible Fixed Assets Maintained Off -Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate cost of low value tangible fi xed assets not included in the balance sheet totalled CZK 512,198 thousand, CZK 452,852 thousand and CZK 

401,823 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Fair Value 

As of the acquisition date in 2008, the Group revalued the assets of D5, akciová společnost, Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and Hanácké železárny a pérov-

ny, a.s. at fair value.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the fair value revaluation of assets increased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 377,131 thousand and re-

sulted in the recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 71,655 thousand using the 19 percent tax rate. 

As of the acquisition date in 2007, the Company revalued the assets of VÚHŽ NEMO a.s., ROLLSERVIS a.s., VÚHŽ a.s., H&S PROGRESS s.r.o. Socho-

rová válcovna TŽ, a.s. and Beskydská golfová, a.s. at fair value.
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In the year ended 31 December 2007, the revaluation of the assets at fair value resulted in an increase in the balance of tangible fi xed assets of CZK 

128,176 thousand, an increase in the balance of intangible fi xed assets of CZK 36,822 and the recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 19,071 thousand 

using the 19 percent tax rate. 

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the revaluation of the assets at fair value increased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 5,540 thousand, de-

creased the balance of intangible fi xed assets by CZK 46 thousand, and resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 1,319 thousand using 

the 24 percent tax rate. 

5.3. Assets Held under Finance and Operating Lease Agreements

Finance Leases  (CZK thousand)

 December  Passenger cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at Dec 

Total estimated sum of lease instalments      

Payments made as of  Dec       

Future payments to be made by  Dec       

Due in the following years      

 (CZK thousand)

 December  Passenger cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at  Dec 

Total estimated sum of lease instalments      

Payments made as of  Dec       

Future payments to be made by  Dec       

Due in the following years      

  (CZK thousand)

 December  Passenger cars Machinery 

and equipment

Balance at  Dec 

Total estimated sum of lease instalments      

Payments made as of  Dec       

Future payments to be made by  Dec       

Due in the following years      

Operating Leases

In the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company paid leases in the amounts of CZK 30,697 thousand, CZK 33,060 thousand and CZK 

42,885 thousand, respectively. 

5.4. Fixed Assets Pledged as Security 

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from České spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from České spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Technology   Raifeisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible FA   ČSOB investment loan

Tangible FA   Long-term loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Long-term loan from UniCredit Bank Czech Republic, a.s.

Tangible FA   Collateral for the loan – renovation and modernisation of the foundry plant 

Tangible FA   Collateral for the loan – renovation and modernisation of the foundry plant

Tangible FA, Land   Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA, Land   Raifeisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible FA, Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Oberbank AG

Tangible FA, Land   Loan from HSBC Bank plc. – Prague branch

Tangible FA, Intangible FA   Collateral of all bank loans

Land   Collateral for receivables ČMZRB loan

Tangible FA, Land   Collateral for receivables Raiff eisenbank a.s. loan

Total     
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31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Long-term loan from UniCredit Bank Czech Republic, a.s.

Technology   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loans from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible FA   Investment loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA, Land   Loan from HSBC Bank plc – Prague branch

Tangible FA   Loan from HSBC Bank plc – Prague branch

Tangible FA   Loan from HSBC Bank plc – Prague branch

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Raiff eisenbank a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from ČMZRB

Land, building   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Total   

 31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from HVB ,a.s.

Technology   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from ČSOB, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Total   
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5.5. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments 

5.5.1. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments in 2008

Year Ended 31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

Barrandov Lands, a.s.           

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o.          

Moravia Steel AG Zug        –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria,s.a.     .       

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o.    **) **) – 

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd.    – –  

Moravia Steel Poland, sp. z.o.o ***)     – – 

Barrandov FM,a.s.      **) **) –  

Barrandov Productions s.r.o. ****)        

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio *****)      –  

Česká parforsní společnost s.r.o.    *) *)  

SV servisní s.r.o. ******)            

Total            –   

*) Data are not available

**) In liquidation

***) On 11 June 2008 Moravia Steel Poland, sp. z.o.o. was formed in Poland, this company reported no business activities as of 31 December 2008.

****) Non-audited results

*****) Balance at 31 December 2007, reporting period ended 29 February 2008

******) SV servisní s.r.o. was included in the group due to the purchase of HŽP as its sole owner.

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with minority infl uence, i.e. less than  

Type of security and investment Cost Fair value Provision Net cost 

Akcie Casino Playing Games, in liquidation *)    

Total    

*) Securities of this entity were included in the Group as a result of the acquisition of HŽP

Summary of Unconsolidated Investments of TŽ, a.s. Sub-group:

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries (shareholding greater than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity *) Profi t 

after tax*)

Provision Net cost

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     –        

Doprava TŽ, a.s.             

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   –       

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.         – –   

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.             

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. *)   –       *)

TRISIA, a.s.         –    

Regionální inovační centrum F-M, s.r.o.   –      

Moravia Security, a.s.         –    

Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o.     –    –   

Sroubarna Kyjov TK Vida ve Metal Sanay ve Ticarel Limi-

ted Sirketi

 – – – – – – 

Total   –   

Note: *) confi dential information
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 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates (shareholding between  –  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity *) Profi t 

after tax*)

Provision Net cost

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE   –  – –  

SILESIASLAG, a.s.         – –  

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.          

Hutnictví železa, a.s.          – –   

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   –   – – 

HRAT, s.r.o.   –       

Total   –   

  (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest (shareholding lower than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity *) Profi t 

after tax*)

Valuation

diff erence

Net cost

KPM CONSULT, a.s.          

SAVER Česká Ves, s.r.o.          

Informatel zájmové sdružení   –     

ACRI, Praha   – ,    – 

Total  – 

*) preliminary results

Other Non-Current Financial Assets (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision

Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral

–

Acquired non-current fi nancial assets   – 

 (CZK thousand)

Value of the investment

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Sub-group  

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Group  

Th e Group did not generate material fi nancial revenues from the unconsolidated investments in the year ended 31 December 2008.

With the exception of the presented fi gures, market values of the securities are not available.

5.5.2. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments in 2007

Year Ended 31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

Barrandov Lands, a.s.           

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o.        –    

Moravia Steel AG Zug       –   

Moravia Steel Ibéria,s.a.     .      

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o.    ***) ***) – 

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd.     –  

Barrandov FM,a.s.      ****) ****) –  

Kinorevue s.r.o.    *) *) – 

Fabia spol. s r.o. – in liquidation      ***) ***) –  

TV Barrandov s.r.o.    –  –   

Barrandov Productions s.r.o. **)         

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio ***)      –  

Total          –  –   

*) Th e petition of bankruptcy rejected

**) Non-audited results

***) In liquidation

****) Bankruptcy completed
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Summary of Unconsolidated Investments of TŽ, a.s. Sub-group: 

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries (shareholding greater than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     –       

Doprava TŽ, a.s.             

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   –       

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.         – –   

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.     –        

VÍTKOVICE – VaV, spol, s.r.o. *)   –       *)

TRISIA, a.s.         –    

Regionální inovační centrum F-M, s.r.o.   –      

Total             –   

Note.: *) confi dential information

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates (shareholding between  –  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

SILESIASLAG, a.s.         – –  

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.           

Hutnictví železa, a.s.           –   

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   –    – 

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA, s.r.o.    –  *) *) –  

Total             –   

Note.: *) Th e bankruptcy trustee has not provided the information.

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest (shareholding lower than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost Name 

of the 

company

HRAT, s.r.o.   –     –  

KPM CONSULT, a.s.           

SAVAREN Česká Ves, s.r.o.   –        

Informatel zájmové sdružení   –          

ACRI, Praha   –    – –  

Total            –  

  (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision

Acquired non-current fi nancial assets    

Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral

–

 (CZK thousand)

Value of the investment

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Sub-group  

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Group  

Th e Group did not generate material fi nancial revenues from the unconsolidated investments in the year ended 31 December 2007.

With the exception of the presented fi gures, market values of the securities are not available.
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5.5.3. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments in 2006

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o.          – –  

Moravia Steel AG Zug        – –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria, a.s.       .     –  

Moravia Goel Trade, d.o.o.   –  ****) ****)  –

Moravia Steel Israel Ltd.     *) *) – 

Barrandov Lands, a.s.     –     –  

Barrandov FM,a.s.       *) *)   –

Kinorevue s.r.o.   –  *****) *****)  –

Fabia spol. s r.o. – in liquidation     –  ****) ****)   –

Barrandov Production s.r.o.   –     – 

Film foundation RWE & Barrandov Studio **)   –   – – 

TV Barrandov s.r.o. ***)   –  –  –  – 

Total                

*) No data available

**) Balance as of 31 December 2006, reporting period ended 28 February 2007

***) First year of business activity, profi t anticipated in future and thus no provision charged 

****) In liquidation

*****) Th e petition of bankruptcy rejected for the lack of assets

Summary of Unconsolidated Investments of the TŽ, a.s. Sub-group: 

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries (shareholding greater than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     –     –   

Doprava TŽ, a.s.           –  

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   –      – 

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.         –    

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.     –      –  

TRISIA, a.s.         –  –  

Beskydská golfová,a.s.         –      

Total                

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates (shareholding between  –  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Profi t/

loss 

Provision Net cost 

SILESIASLAG, a.s.*)         –   

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.     .     – 

Hutnictví železa, a.s.       .       

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   – .    –

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA, s.r.o.      – . **)  **)     –

Total                

*) Třinecká hutní, a.s. was renamed to SILESIASLAG, a.s.

**) Th e bankruptcy trustee has not provided the information.

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest (shareholding lower than  )

Name of the company Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of 

securities 

Share in  Equity Net 

profi t/

loss 

Valuation 

diff erence

Fair value Financial 

revenue 

for the 

year

HRAT, s.r.o.   – .     – –

KPM CONSULT, a.s.        –  –

SAVAREN Česká Ves, s.r.o.   –      –  –

Total              –
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 (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision

Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral

–

 (CZK thousand)

Value of the investment

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Sub-group  

Total non-current fi nancial assets for the Group  

Th e Group did not generate material fi nancial revenues from the unconsolidated investments in the year ended 31 December 2006.

With the exception of the presented fi gures, market values of the securities are not available.

5.5.4. Securities and Equity Investments under Equity Accounting (CZK thousand) 

Securities and equity investments under equity accounting   

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s.      

MORAVIA ENERGO, a.s. – – –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. *) *)  

CMC TRINEC LIMITED      

CMC – TRINEC Stahlhandel GmbH      

Total      

*) Since 1 September 2007, the company has been consolidated using the full consolidation method (refer to Note 2.1.2.)

5.6. Inventory  (CZK thousand)

Inventory structure Balance 

at  Dec 



Provisi-

ons at  

Dec 

Net 

balance 

at  Dec 



Balance 

at  Dec 



Provisi-

ons 

 Dec 



Net 

balance 

at  Dec 



Balance 

at  Dec 



Provisi-

ons 

at  Dec 



Net 

balance 

at  Dec 



Material    –        –        –    

Internally produced inventory:    –        –        –    

–  Work in progress and semi-fi nished products    –        –        –    

– Finished products    –        –        –    

Goods   –     –      –  

Prepayments   –    –    – 

Total    –         –        –    

5.7. Receivables 

5.7.1. Long-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Trade receivables      

– Prepayments made      

– Other receivables      

– Deferred tax asset   –  

Total      

Th e increase in other receivables as of 31 December 2008 predominantly included the provision of a loan to CZECH MEDIA LINK of CZK 130,116 thou-

sand which is repayable in 2009, 2010 and 2011. Th e long-term portion of the receivable of CZK 78,949 thousand is reported in the line “Other long-term 

receivables”, the short-term portion of the receivable of CZK 51,167 thousand is reported on the line “Other short-term receivables”. Th e deferred tax as-

set is described in detail in Note 5.14.2. 
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Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Trade Receivables as of 31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Year Trade receivables 

and long–term 

prepayments

Other receivables Deferred tax asset Total 

        

        

    –  

    –  

    –  

After    – 

Total        

Long-term receivables are settled within their due terms.

5.7.2. Structure of Short-Term Receivables 

Aging of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Balance 

at  Dec

Category Before due 

date

Past due date Total

 –  days  –  days  –  

days

 –  years  years and 

greater

Total

 Short-term                    

Provisions –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Total                    

 Short-term                   

Provisions –  – –  –  –  –  –  – 

Total                

 Short-term                   

Provisions –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Total                 

Receivables typically mature within 30 days, intra-group receivables typically mature within 30 days.

Breakdown of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Customers         

– Bills of exchange for collection      

– Other receivables     

– Provisions –  –  – 

Total         

Other Short-Term Receivables 

Other prepayments made principally involve prepayments for supplied services. Other receivables mainly relate to short-term loans, provided supplier lo-

ans and receivables associated with the sale of a business part. Estimated receivables principally include unbilled supplies of rails.
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5.7.3. Intercompany Receivables 

Short-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Entity Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

• Trade receivables

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH      

TRINEC-CMC LTD   

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

Řeťaze Slovakia, s.r.o.. –   

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.   

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. **) **) **)  

Kvalifi kační a personální agentura, o.p.s.   

TRISIA, a.s.   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec      

Beskydská golfová, a.s. ***) ***) ***) 

SILESIASLAG, a.s.   

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.    –

ZAMECZEK BLOGOCICE *)   – –

Regionální informační centrum Frýdek-Místek, s.r.o.  – –

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALUGRICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. *)  – –

Moravia Security, a.s. *)  – –

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o.   

Barrandov FM, a.s. – –  

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio   

TV Barrandov s.r.o.     

Total      

• Other intercompany receivables

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec      

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. **) **) **)  

Total      

Total short-term intercompany receivables      

Other than intercompany receivables         

Total short-term receivables         

*) Moravia Security, a.s. became part of the group on 15 February 2008 and Zameczek Błogocice on 24 October 2008, the name of VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. changed to MATERIÁ-

LOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.,

**) Since 1 September 2007, the company has been consolidated using the full consolidation method (refer to Note 2.1.2.)

***) Since 1 January 2007, the company has been consolidated using the full consolidation method (refer to Note 2.1.2.)

Long-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Entity Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Long-term receivables

• Trade receivables

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. **) **) **)  

Total – –

Total long-term intercompany receivables – –  

Other than intercompany receivables      

Total long-term receivables      

**) Since 1 September 2007, the company has been consolidated using the full consolidation method (refer to Note 2.1.2.)

5.7.4. Pledged Receivables 

Th e Group has pledged and conditionally assigned some of its receivables under loan agreements. Under these agreements, receivables are pledged in 14 – 

day or 30-day cycles as they fall due. As of 31 December 2008, the amount of pledged receivables was CZK 930,585 thousand. 

5.8. Derivative Financial Instruments

Th e Group hedged the exchange rate risk using derivative fi nancial instruments during the year ended 31 December 2008. Th e net value of open derivative 

fi nancial instruments as of 31 December 2008 was CZK (406,237) thousand (2007: CZK 17,598 thousand, 2006: CZK 12,251 thousand). Th e market values 

of individual open derivative fi nancial instruments were reported in lines ‘Other short-term receivables’ (C.III.9) and ‘Other short-term payables’ (B.III.11) 

at the year-end:
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 (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Receivables from fi xed term transactions – other receivables      

Payables from fi xed term transactions – other payables –  –  – 

Total derivative fi nancial instruments –  –   

On the basis of an analysis of the hedge eff ectiveness of derivative fi nancial instruments, the Company charged the eff ective portion of the hedging deri-

vative instrument revaluation (with highly eff ective hedging) as of 31 December 2008 against ‘Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets and liabili-

ties’ in the amount of CZK (392,656) thousand (2007: CZK 2,969 thousand, 2006: CZK (12,251) thousand). 

5.9. Current Financial Assets  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Cash      

Current accounts        

Current accounts with transaction limits      

Current deposit – special-purpose funds of the received state aid     

Term deposits      

Current securities         

Total current fi nancial assets         

As of 31 December 2008, the Group reports depository bills of exchange in the amount of CZK 2,622,577 thousand (2007: CZK 2,517,116 thousand, 2006: 

CZK 620,562 thousand) and tradable securities in the amount of CZK 15,349 thousand (2007: CZK 18,596 thousand, 2006: CZK 82,055 thousand). 

5.10. Temporary Assets  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Deferred expenses      

Deferred expenses – lease contracts      

Other deferred expenses – studies, projects, interest, subscription payments      

Complex deferred expenses      

Accrued income      

Total deferred expenses and accrued income      

5.11. Equity 

5.11.1. Shareholders’ Equity 

Movements in equity are reported in a standalone consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Allocations to the statutory reserve fund are made at 5 percent of net profi t until the fund reaches 20 percent of the Company’s share capital as requi-

red by legislation. 

Gains and losses from revaluation comprise gains/losses from the revaluation of available-for-sale securities less the deferred tax liability.

Th e General Meeting of the Parent Company decided not to declare dividends for 2007, 

dividends for 2006 amounted to CZK 3,000,200 thousand, and dividends for 2005 amounted to CZK 640,150 thousand. 

5.11.2. Share Capital 

As of 31 December 2008, the share capital amounted to CZK 3,157,000 thousand. Th e Company’s share capital is composed of 1,514 registered shares with 

a nominal value of CZK 500 thousand each, 100 registered shares with a nominal value of CZK 10,000 thousand each and 2 registered shares with a no-

minal value of CZK 700,000 thousand each. Th e shares are not readily marketable but are fully transferable subject to the prior consent of the Compa-

ny’s Supervisory Board. 
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5.12. Reserves (CZK thousand)

  Reserves under statutory regulations Other reserves Total reserves

Reserve for repairs of 

tangible FA

Reserve for restoration

Balance at   Dec         

Creation       

Use        

Balance at  Dec         

New acquisition    

Creation       

Use       

Balance at  Dec         

New acquisition      

Creation       

Use       

Balance at  Dec         

Th e reserves for repairs of tangible fi xed assets (tax deductible) were made for repairs of main production facilities in compliance with the Provisioning 

Act. Th e creation of reserves is based upon a long-term repair plan, timing and budget of repairs. 

Other reserves consist of reserves for the scrapping of equipment, emission allowances, additionally assessed taxes, real estate transfer tax, employee 

bonuses, commitments in litigation and losses incurred in connection with a concluded long-term contract, and the reserve for business risks predomi-

nantly arising from the operation of fi xed assets.

5.13. Payables 

5.13.1. Long-Term Payables   (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Long-term payables

– Trade payables      

– Long-term bills of exchange to be settled – –  

– Other payables     

– Deferred tax liability      

Total      

Other long-term payables include long-term supplier loans.

Long-term bills of exchange to be settled reported as of 31 December 2006 refl ected the nominal value of bills of exchange issued in order to cover the 

due amount arising from the renovation and modernisation of the light section mill. Interest expense on these bills of exchange is recorded as a deferred 

expense. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, these bills of exchange are recorded as short-term trade payables. 

5.13.2. Short-Term Trade Payables   (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term trade payables 

– Suppliers         

– Bills of exchange to be settled     

– Other payables    

Total         

Aging of short-term trade payables:

 (CZK thousand)

Balan-

ce at  

Dec

Category Before due date Past due date Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  days  –  years  years and 

greater

 Short-term               

 Short-term              

 Short-term               

5.13.3. Other Payables

As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2007, the aggregate amount of payables to social security and contribution to state employment policy amounted CZK 

155,834 thousand, CZK 168,501 and CZK 158,365 thousand, respectively. Th ese payables were duly settled as of the balance sheet date. 

State – tax payables and subsidies predominantly include the short-term portion of payables arising from public subsidies and an income tax payable. 

Estimated payables predominantly include unbilled supplies for work and services and an estimated payable for outstanding vacation days and annual 

bonuses including insurance payments. 
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Other payables of the Company predominantly include negative amounts from transactions with fi nancial derivatives (refer to Note 5.8.), the short-term 

portion of supplier loans, deductions from employees and payables arising from the acquisition of equity investments. 

5.13.4. Intercompany Payables 

Short-Term Payables  (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

• Trade balances

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

Hutnictví železa, a.s.   

Moravia Security, a.s. ****)   – –

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TRISIA, a.s.     

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.      

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec      

Beskydská golfová, a.s. **) ***) ***) 

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH    

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. *) **) **)  

VESUVIUS SLAVIA a.s. – –  

STEELTEC CZ, s.r.o. – – 

FINITRADING, a.s.      

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENIJA d.o.o.    

Kvalifi kační a personální agentura, v.o.s.    –

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o.     –

TV Barrandov s.r.o. –  

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. ****)   – –

Regionální inovační centrum Frýdek – Místek, s.r.o.  – –

SV servisní, s.r.o. ***)   – –

Total short-term intercompany payables      

Other than intercompany payables         

Total short-term payables         

*) On 21 August 2007, Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. became a subsidiary through an investment in the share capital of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Th is fact was recorded to the Register of Companies on 3 

September 2007.

**) Since 1 January 2007, the company has been consolidated using the full consolidation method (refer to Note 2.1.2.)

***) SV servisní s.r.o. was included in the group due to the purchase of HŽP as its sole owner.

****) Moravia Security, a.s. became part of the group on 15 February 2008 and Zameczek Błogocice on 24 October 2008, the name of VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. changed to MATERI-

ÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.
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5.14. Deferred Tax Liability and Deferred Tax Asset 

5.14.1. Deferred Tax Liability

In determining the deferred tax liability amount, the Group used the tax rate for the period in which the deferred tax liability is anticipated to be realised.

 (CZK thousand)

Deferred tax arising from Tax rate in  Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of fi xed assets  – –   

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of fi xed assets        –

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of fi xed assets  –   –

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of fi xed assets    – –

Revaluation of available for sale securities  – – –

Revaluation of available for sale securities  – – –

Revaluation of assets to fair value charged against equity  – –  

Revaluation of assets to fair value charged against equity      –

Accounting reserves  –  –  –

Accounting reserves  –  –

Accounting reserves  –  – –

Accounting reserves  – – 

Provisions  –  –

Provisions  –  –  –

Provisions  –   – –

Provisions  – – 

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  – – 

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  –  – –

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  – 

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  –  –

Utilisable tax loss  – – 

Utilisable tax loss  – 

Unrealised profi t on the sale of tangible FA within the Group  –  –

Unrealised profi t on the sale of tangible FA within the Group  – 

Unrealised profi t on the sale of tangible FA within the Group  –  –  –

Unrealised profi t on the sale of tangible FA within the Group  – – 

Unrealised profi t on the sale of inventory within the Group  –  –

Unrealised profi t on the sale of inventory within the Group  – 

Unrealised profi t on the sale of inventory within the Group  –   – 

Total temporary diff erences           

Deferred tax liability        

 (CZK thousand)

Analysis of movements

 January   

Changes in the consolidation group – new acquisitions  

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account – 

Current changes charged against equity  

 December   

Changes in the consolidation group – new acquisitions  

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account  

Current changes charged against equity  

 December   

5.14.2. Deferred Tax Asset

Tax rate () Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec  

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of tangible fi xed assets  – –  

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of tangible fi xed assets  –  – –

Diff erence between the tax and accounting carrying values of tangible fi xed assets  –  – –

Accounting reserves  – –  

Expenses deductible for tax purposes in the following years  

Provisions  – –  

Provisions    – –

Receivables (payables) from fi xed term transactions   

Utilisable tax loss  – –  

Utilisable tax loss    – –

Utilisable tax loss    – –

Total temporary diff erences   –  

Deferred tax asset   –  



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  M O R A V I A  S T E E L ,  a . s .  2 0 0 8 77

 (CZK thousand)

Analysis of movements

 January   

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account – 

 December  –

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account  

Current changes charged to the equity  

 December   

5.15. Bank Loans and Borrowings 

Th e aggregate balance of outstanding bank loans is CZK 4,612,152 thousand. In 2008, the interest rate on bank loans varied between 2.67  and 6.94  p.a., 

in 2007 between 3.12  and 6.26  p.a., in 2006 between 3.76  and 6.05  p.a.

5.15.1. Bank Loans and Grants for 2008

Long-Term Bank Loans (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment EUR       SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK       Movable assets, guarantee statement

Investment EUR –     ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR –     Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR – –   CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR – –   SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK – –   Real estate

Investment EUR       SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK –     Real estate

Investment EUR –     No collateral

Operating EUR – –   Guarantee statements of TŽ

Investment CZK       Immovable and movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       Movable assets, guarantee statements of MS

Investment CZK       Immovable and movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Operating EUR – –   Conditional cession and pledging of receivables, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       Immovable and movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR       Movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK     – –

Investment CZK     – Komerční banka a.s. for investment

Investment CZK     – Unprotested blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR     – Blank bill of exchange, pledge of real estate

Investment CZK     – Blank bill of exchange, pledge of movable assets

Investment CZK    – Blank bill of exchange, pledge of movable assets

Investment CZK –   – Pledge of immovable assets

Investment CZK –     Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       Pledge of real estate

Investment CZK     – Pledge of real estate

Investment EUR   – – UCB Czech Republic, a.s.

Investment EUR   – – Komerční banka a.s. for investment

Investment CZK   – – Pledge of receivables, real estate

Investment CZK   – – Pledge of receivables, real estate

Investment CZK   – – Česká spořitelna a.s.

Investment EUR   – – HSBC Bank plc – Prague branch

Investment CZK   – – HSBC Bank plc – Prague branch

Investment CZK   – – Pledged real estate

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, pledged real estate

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, pledged real estate

Total         
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Short-Term Bank Loans  (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment CZK       Movables, guarantee statements of MS, a.s

Investment CZK       Movables and immovable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR – –   Movables, blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK – –   –

Investment EUR       ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR –     CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR – –   EKN guarantee insurer

Investment EUR – –   EKN guarantee insurer

Investment EUR –     SACE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR – –   KUKE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK – –   Real estate

Investment EUR      SACE guarantee insurer

Operating CZK – –   Blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK – –   –

Operating CZK – –   –

Operating EUR – –   –

Investment EUR       No collateral

Investment CZK       Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       Immovable and movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       Movable assets

Investment CZK       Pledged movables and immovable assets and collateralising blank bill 

of exchange

Operating CZK – –   Receivables, current assets

Operating CZK    No collateral

Investment EUR       SACE guarantee insurer

Short-term EUR – –   Pledged receivables, blank bill of exchange

Revolving USD – –   Pledged receivables, blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK       Pledged receivables, blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK       Conditional cession of receivables

Operating CZK   – – Conditional cession of receivables

Investment CZK       Pledged immovable assets

Operating CZK     – –

Operating CZK –   – –

Investment CZK     – –

Investment CZK     – –

Investment CZK     – –

Investment CZK     – Movable assets

Investment CZK     – –

Investment EUR –   – Immovable assets, blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK     – Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK    – Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK     – Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK     – Blank bill of exchange, pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – –

Investment CZK   – – –

Investment EUR   – – Pledged assets, blank bills of exchange

Investment EUR   – – Pledged assets, blank bills of exchange

Investment CZK   – – Receivables

Investment CZK   – – Real estate, receivables

Operating CZK   – – –

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Investment CZK   – – Pledged contracts for tangible fi xed assets

Operating EUR – –   Conditional cession and pledging of receivables, blank bill of exchange 

Investment EUR – –   Blank bill of exchange, pledged immovables

Operating EUR – –  No collateral

Operating CZK     – Pledged contracts for tangible fi xed assets

Operating EUR –   – –

Investment CZK    – Pledged immovables
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Type of loan Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment CZK     – Pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – –

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – Blank bill of exchange, pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – –

Investment CZK   – – –

Operating CZK   – – –

Investment CZK   – – Pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – Pledged immovables

Investment CZK   – – Pledged immovables

Investment CZK     – Pledged immovables

Total           

Repayment Schedule  (CZK thousand)

Years      In 

subsequent 

periods 

Total 

Loan instalments                

5.16. Accrued Expenses and Deferred Income (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Accrued expenses      

– Interest      

– Invoices, credit notes      

Deferred income      

Total accrued expenses and deferred income      

5.17. Other off-Balance Sheet Liabilities

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

In 2000, the Company sold 11 percent of shares in the subsidiary TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s. to Commercial Metals AG (hereinafter “CMC“). In accor-

dance with the sale contract entered into with CMC in 2000, CMC holds an option for the sale of the purchased 11 percent equity investment in TŘINEC-

KÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. to the Company which can be exercised before 31 December 2010. Th e selling option price amounts to USD 3.36291 per share. Ac-

cording to this contract, CMC holds the option for the purchase of other shares which would secure the holding of its investment in the case of the decre-

ase in voting rights or share capital. Th is option can be exercised before 31 December 2010. Th e purchase option price amounts to USD 0.56048 per share. 

Th e Company issued a Guarantee Statement in favour of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. in respect of bank loans totalling CZK 630,000 thousand. Th e 

balance of the outstanding loan repayments collateralised in the form of the Guarantee Statement was CZK 317,889 thousand as of 31 December 2008.

As of 31 December 2008, the Company was involved in no legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

On 1 December 2008, the Company concluded a contract for the transfer of shares with Pavel Pěnkava, the lawyer representing on the basis of a com-

mission contract allowing the sale of a 51 percent equity investment in Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. with its registered offi  ce at V Jámě 1371/8, Nové měs-

to, Prague 1, 110 00, corporate ID 268 55 097. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 106,000 thousand. Th e validity of the contract was subject to 

a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) regarding the authorisati-

on of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above. On 5 February 2009, the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition 

in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) approved, via its fi rst-level resolution, the association of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. and Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. As a re-

sult, MORAVIA STEEL acquired the 51 percent equity investment in the assumed entity. 

SOCHOROVÁ VÁLCOVNA TŽ, a.s.

Environmental Liabilities

Th e Company anticipates incurring costs of CZK 8,992 thousand to remove environmental burdens over the following years. Th ese anticipated costs are 

based upon the Company’s own assessment of environmental pollution resulting from the Company’s business plan, which are fully covered by other 

reserves.

Legal Disputes

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.
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TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s.

Type of liability Aggregate amount at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Parent company debt acceptance   CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantee statements

– to Group companies EUR  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand –

Guarantees

– to other entities USD  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

EUR  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

Collateralising blank bills of exchange

– to other entities    CZK , thousand

Th e Company was subject to an environmental audit which indicates the Company’s liabilities relating to the environment. Pursuant to the audit, the 

Company entered into a contract with the Czech Property Fund for the settlement of expenses incurred for the settlement of the environmental liabili-

ties before the privatisation up to CZK 514 million. As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company drew the funds in the amounts of CZK 335,735 

thousand, CZK 299,316 thousand and CZK 259,744 thousand, respectively. 

Given that the Company concluded an amendment to this contract with the Czech Republic – Ministry of Finance on 3 November 2008, the guaran-

tee of the Ministry amounts up to CZK 843.6 million. Th is guarantee covers environmental liabilities of the Company, therefore the reserve for environ-

mental burdens was released. 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. (CZK thousand)

Type of liability Aggregate amount Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Blank bills of exchange – collateral for long-term bank loans        

Blank bills of exchange – collateral for overdraft loans        

Total        

Th e company provides no guarantees for liabilities to third parties. 

Th e company holds the ČSN EN ISO 14001 certifi cate and successfully passed an EMS compliance audit in 2008 performed by EZU, a.s. Praha. Accor-

ding to the results of the audit, no extraordinary environmental expenses are anticipated to be incurred in the future periods. As of 31 December 2008, the 

company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

Th e company is not aware of any material contingent losses. 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.

Th e company’s off -balance sheet records show payables of CZK 1,190 thousand arising from outstanding default interest charged until 2000. 

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the company’s management cannot estimate contingent liabili-

ties pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.

Th e company received non-payment bank guarantees from Komerční banka, a.s. for the prepayments to customers. 

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

At the balance sheet date, the company recorded future liabilities as a result of the contracted capital expenditure of CZK 19,433 thousand.

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the company’s management cannot estimate contingent liabili-

ties pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the company’s management cannot estimate contingent liabilities 

pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.

D 5, akciová společnost, Třinec

Th e company records the following off  balance sheet liabilities: loans collateralised by the blank bill of exchange and aggregate future receivables up to 

CZK 100 million. As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no legal dispute. Th e company records no environmental liabilities. 

As of the balance sheet date, the company records no material future payables arising from expenditure for tangible fi xed assets arising from conclu-

ded contracts. 

VUHŽ, a.s.

As of 31 December 2008, the company records no off  balance sheet liabilities. 

As of the balance sheet date, the Company records no material future payables arising from expenditure for fi xed assets arising from concluded con-

tracts. 
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Řetězárna, a.s.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the company concluded forward contracts for the hedging of the exchange rate in 2009 and 2010 in the aggregate 

amount of EUR 2,300 thousand. Th e fair value measurement of these transactions was recognised in the profi t and loss account. 

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s.

At the balance sheet date, the company recorded future liabilities as a result of the contracted capital expenditure of CZK 82.4 million (EUR 3,060 thou-

sand).

In April 2008, the Bureau Veritas certifi cation was audited pursuant to ISO 14001. No failures were noted during the audit and it was confi rmed that the 

company’s environmental management system is in line with the requirements of ISO 14001:2004 regarding certifi cation – design, development and pro-

duction of springs through hot forming, helical and leaf springs and stabilisers. 

Beskydská golfová, a.s.

Easements:

Reporting period

Name of the asset Purpose Legal eff ect Entity

Plot of land  Placement of the high voltage line 

and supporting columns for the high 

voltage network, right of entry with 

the purpose of repairs in the protective 

area on the part of the plot of land

 July  Severomoravská energetika, a.s.

Plot of land /

Plot of land 

Payables collateralised by bills of exchange:

Reporting period

Name of the entity Type of payable Maturity date Due amount 

ČMZRB, a.s. Investment special purpose loan  July  CZK   thousand

CAC Leasing, a.s. LS -simulator  Jan  CZK   thousand 

CAC Leasing, a.s. LS -machinery  June  CZK   thousand

Plzeňský Prazdroj, a.s. Contract for the advertising  July  CZK  thousand

CAC Leasing, a.s. LS -machinery  May  CZK   thousand

Total CZK   thouand

Slévárny Třinec, a.s., REFRASIL, s.r.o., Barrandov Studio a.s., Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s., MS SLOVENSKO, s.r.o., MORAVIA STEEL 

ITALIA, SRL, Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Th e companies are unaware of any off  balance sheet liabilities as of 31 December 2008.
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6. Additional Information of the Profit and Loss Account 

6.1. Income from Current Activities of the Group

2008 (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total 

Metallurgic production         

Power generation     

Production of refractory material      

Foundry activities        

Engineering activities        

Sales of goods      

Services        

Change in inventory       

Own work capitalised       

Total         

2007 (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total 

Metallurgic production         

Power generation   –  

Production of refractory material      

Foundry activities       

Engineering activities      

Sales of goods      

Services        

Change in inventory   –  

Own work capitalised   –  

Total         

2006 (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total 

Metallurgic production         

Power generation   –  

Production of refractory material      

Foundry activities      

Engineering activities       

Sales of goods      

Services       

Change in inventory   –  

Own work capitalised   –  

Total         

6.2. Consumed Purchases  (CZK thousand)

    

Consumed material         

Consumed energy         

Sales of goods      

Total consumed purchases         

6.3. Services  (CZK thousand)

    

Repair and maintenance         

Transportation         

Cooperation        

Leasing      

Right of use      

Marketing      

Rental      

Clean-up work      

Commissions      

Other services       

Total         



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  M O R A V I A  S T E E L ,  a . s .  2 0 0 8 83

Other services primarily include transport and telecommunication, legal advisory services and auditing, advertisement, lease of a trademark, services of 

a corporate employee agency, services related to health safety and protection, security guards, training, clean-up work and other auxiliary work.

6.4. Other Operating Income  (CZK thousand)

    

Contractual penalties and default interest      

Recoveries of receivables written off  and transferred      

Grants received      

Release to income of the CO emission allowances according to the National Alloca-

tion Plan 

       

Sundry operating income      

Total other operating income        

6.5. Other Operating Expenses  (CZK thousand)

    

Gifts      

Contractual penalties and default interest     

Other penalties and fi nes     

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables      

Sundry operating expenses      

Charge to expenses for the CO emission allowances according to the National 

Allocation Plan

       

Defi cits and damage relating to operating activities      

Total other operating expenses        

6.6. Grants 

Grants for operating purposes of CZK 6,026 thousand received in 2008 (CZK 7,860 thousand and CZK 3,025 thousand in 2007 and 2006, respectively) in-

clude grants for research purposes, and grants received from the Employment Offi  ce in prior years. 

In addition, the Group received allowances of CZK 6,893 thousand and CZK 25,423 thousand from the Ministry of Industry and Trade as of 31 Decem-

ber 2007 and 2006, respectively, designed to address the social implications of the steel industry restructuring eff orts.

Drawing of Allowed State Aid

Th e state aid is provided both for operating and investment purposes. 

Until 2008, the Company received CZK 278,786 thousand and CZK 149,217 thousand for operating and investment purposes, respectively.

  (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses

 in 

Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Eligible 

expenses 

in 

Allowed state 

aid in  

(drawn) 

Eligible 

expenses 

in 

Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Research and development            

Environment          

Education            

Total            

  (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Total eligible 

expenses until 

 Dec 

Total allowed 

state aid until 

 Dec  

(drawn)

Allowed 

state aid 

(received)

Returned 

allowed 

state aid 

Allowed 

state aid 

(to be drawn)

Research and development              

Environment             

Education             

Total              

 (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Total eligible 

expenses until 

 Dec 

Total allowed 

state aid until 

 Dec  

(drawn)

Allowed

 state aid 

(received)

Returned 

allowed 

state aid 

Allowed 

state aid 

(to be drawn)

Research and development             

Environment           

Education           

Total             
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Environmental and educational projects were completed as of 31 December 2007. Research and development projects were completed as of 30 June 2008. 

6.7. Related Party Transactions 

6.7.1. Income Generated with Related Parties which Were not Eliminated in respect of the Fully Consolidated Companies of the Group

Th e column ‘Relation to the company’ is disclosed from the perspective of the MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Group.

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity          

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity –    – –  

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity        –  

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity –    – 

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity –      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity        –  

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity –         

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate –     – –  

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Controlled entity   – – – –  

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity     –  

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. Controlled entity –    –  

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE Controlled entity – – – –  

Regionální informační centrum Frýdek – Místek s.r.o. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o. Controlled entity      –  

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity – –   – 

Total              

2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       –  

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity –   – – –  

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity        –  

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       –  

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity –     –  

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity       –  

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Controlled entity –      –  

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate –   –  –  

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o. Controlled entity      –  

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity – –  – – 

TV Barrandov s.r.o. Controlled entity – – – –  

Total          
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2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       –  

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity –   – – –  

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity        –  

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity – –   – 

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity      –  

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity       –  

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity       –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity            

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity –   – – –  

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity – –  –  

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – – 

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity – –   

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate –    – –  

SD Obchodní společnost s.r.o. *)     – –  

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity – –  – – 

DEMONTA Trade a.s. *) – –     –  

Pozemní stavitelství Zlín a.s. **)     – – –  

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o. Controlled entity       

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity  –  – – 

TV Barrandov s.r.o. Controlled entity  –   – 

Total             

*) Entity related through a common member of the Supervisory Board

**) Entity related through a common member of its Board of Directors

6.7.2. Costs Incurred with Related Parties which Were not Eliminated in respect of the Fully Consolidated Companies of the Group 

Th e column ‘Relation to the company’ is disclosed from the perspective of the MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Group.

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Fixed

 assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity          

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity – –   –   

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity  –     

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Controlled entity – –   –    

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity –    –   

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity –          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity – –  –   

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity          

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity           

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Controlled entity – –   –   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity –     –   

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate – –       

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlling entity –     –     

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity – –        

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. Controlled entity –    –   

Barrandov Productions s.r.o. Controlled entity – –  –  

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity – – –    

SV servisní, s.r.o. Controlled entity – –   –   

Total              
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2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Fixed

 assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity –     –  

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity –    –  

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity – –  – 

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity –    –  

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity –        

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity – –     

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity      –  

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity –        

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Controlled entity     –  

Moravia Steel Ibéria, s.a. Controlled entity – –   –  

Moravia Steel Slovenija, d.o.o. Controlled entity – –   –  

CMC-TRINEC Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity – –      

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlled entity –    – –   

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o. Controlled entity – –     

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity – – –  

TV Barrandov s.r.o. Controlled entity – –   

Total            

2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Fixed

 assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity – –   –  

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity – –  – 

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity –   – –  

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity –     –  

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity – –     

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity   –   –  

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity –        

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity –     –  

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity           

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Associate – –   

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity – –  – 

FINITRADING, a.s. Controlled entity –    – –   

MORAVIA STEEL IBERIA S.A Controlled entity – –  –  

Barrandov Productions, s.r.o. Controlled entity –    –  

Filmová nadace RWE & Barrandov Studio Controlled entity –  –  

TV Barrandov s.r.o. Controlled entity – –  – 

SD Obchodní společnost s.r.o. *) –   – –  

DEMONTA T, s.r.o. *) –   – –  

DEMONTA Trade a.s. *) –    –  

Total              

 *) Entity related through a common Supervisory Board member
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7. Employees, Management and Statutory Bodies

7.1. Staff Costs and Number of Employees

2008 (CZK thousand)

Company Average number 

of employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.      

Barrandov Studio, a.s.      

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s.      

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L.     *)

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENSKO, s.r.o. – – – –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.     

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s.      

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.        

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..        

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna a.s.      

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

H&S PROGRESS, s.r.o.    

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.      

D, a.s.      

VUHŽ, a.s.      

Total under full consolidation        

*) Data not available.

2007 (CZK thousand)

Company Average number 

of employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.      

Barrandov Studio, a.s.      

Barrandov Televizní Studio, a.s. – – – –

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L. *) *)   *)

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENSKO, s.r.o. – – – –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.     

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.        

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna, a.s.      

VVT VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

H&S PROGRESS, s.r.o.     

ROLLSERVIS a.s.     

VÚHŽ a.s.      

VUHŽ NEMO a.s. – –  –

Total under full consolidation        

*) Data not available.
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2006 (CZK thousand)

Company Average number of 

employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.      

Barrandov Studio a.s.      

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA S.R.L.      

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENSKO – – – –

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.        

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna, a.s.      

VVT VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

Total under full consolidation        

7.2. Benefits  Provided to Members of Statutory, Supervisory and Management Bodies

Th e amount of bonuses, advances, borrowings, other receivables, payables and other benefi ts to members of the statutory, management and supervisory 

bodies is as follows:

 (CZK thousand)

Company/performance   

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.      

Use of management cars      

Damage liability insurance   

Bonuses      

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution – –  

Damage liability insurance    

Bonuses      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Damage liability insurance   

Bonuses   

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution  – 

Damage liability insurance  – 

Bonuses   

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.   

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Damage liability insurance   

Bonuses   

REFRASIL, s.r.o.     

Use of management cars   –

Life insurance contribution    

Damage liability insurance –  

Bonuses   

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.    

Use of management cars  – 

Damage liability insurance –  

Bonuses  –  

Řetězárna a.s.      

Bonuses      

Life insurance contribution – – 

Use of management cars   

Damage liability insurance   –
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Company/performance   

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.     

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   –

Bonuses   

Barrandov Studio a.s.      

Use of management cars    

Bonuses      

Life insurance contribution   

Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s.  

Use of management cars   – –

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.     –

Life insurance contribution   –

Bonuses     –

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.   

Damage liability insurance –  

Bonuses   

ROLLSERVIS a.s. –  

Use of management cars –  

Damage liability insurance –  

Bonuses –  

VÚHŽ a.s.     

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Damage liability insurance   

Bonuses    

VUHŽ NEMO a.s. –  

Bonuses –  

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s.   – –

Life insurance contribution  – –

Bonuses  – –

D, a.s.  – –

Use of management cars  – –

Life insurance contribution  – –

Bonuses  – –

Šroubárna Kyjov, s.r.o.  – –

Use of management cars  – –

Life insurance contribution  – –

Bonuses  – –

Total      

8. Post Balance Sheet Events

On 1 December 2008, the Parent Company concluded a contract for the transfer of shares with Pavel Pěnkava, the lawyer representing on the basis of a 

commission contract allowing the sale of a 51 percent equity investment in Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. with its registered offi  ce at V Jámě 1371/8, Nové 

město, Prague 1, 110 00, corporate ID 268 55 097. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 106,000 thousand. Th e validity of the contract was subject 

to a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) regarding the authori-

sation of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above. On 5 February 2009, the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competi-

tion in the Czech Republic (ÚOHS) approved, via its fi rst-level resolution, the association of MORAVIA STEEL a.s. and Moravskoslezský kovošrot, a.s. As 

a result, MORAVIA STEEL acquired the 51 percent equity investment in the assumed entity. 

On 5 February 2009, the Parent Company increased the share capital in Barrandov Televizní Studio by CZK 399,288 thousand. On 25 February 2009, the 

Company subscribed for another 89 shares in the aggregate amount of CZK 712 thousand. Th ese shares were paid on 3 March 2009. 

On 18 February 2009, the Parent Company entered in a purchase contract with Čestmír Vančura for the purchase of the 50 percent equity interest in 

Kovárna „VIVA“ Zlín, spol. s r.o., with its registered offi  ce at tř. T. Bati 5266, Zlín, 760 01. Th e purchase price was determined to be CZK 175,000 thousand. 

Th e validity of the contract is subject to a suspensory condition, i.e. the ruling of the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition in the Czech Re-

public (ÚOHS) regarding the authorisation of association of competitors arising from the contract referred to above. On 6 May 2009, the fi rst instalment 

of CZK 50,000 thousand, which has the nature of a prepayment for the purchase price, was paid. If the Offi  ce for the Protection of Economic Competition 

in the Czech Republic does not allow the association before 30 September 2009 at the latest, the fi rst instalment for the purchase price will be refunded to 

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. before 30 October 2009. 

On 21 January 2009, Třinecké železárny, a.s. increased its equity investment in ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE Spółka z ograniczoną odpowiedzialnością, 

Poland, by 43 percent i.e. to a total of 88 percent. 

Třinecké železárny, a.s. entered into a contract leading to the control of METALURGIA S.A. based in Radomsk, Poland. Th e transaction will be com-

pleted following the fulfi lment of the suspensory conditions involving, among others, the receipt of approvals from the relevant anti-monopoly offi  ces. 
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Report on Related Party Transactions for the Year 
Ended 31 December 2008 

Name of the Company: MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Registered Offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová , PSČ  

Legal Status: Joint Stock Company

Corporate ID: 25872940

Tax ID: CZ 25872940

Th e Company is recorded in the Register of Companies held by the Regional Court in Ostrava, Section B, File 1297

MORAVIA STEEL a.s., based at Průmyslová 1000, 739 70 Třinec-Staré Město, corporate ID: 63474808, recorded in the Register of Companies, Section 

B, File 1297, maintained at the Regional Court in Ostrava (henceforth the “Company”), forms a holding group with the entities listed below in terms of 

Section 66a (7) of the Commercial Code.

Th is report on related party transactions has been prepared in accordance with Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code for the reporting period ended 

31 December 2008 (henceforth the “reporting period”).

I. Defi nition of the Holding Group 

A. Controlling Entities 

FINITRADING a.s., based at nám. Svobody 526, 739 61 Třinec, corporate ID: 61974692

Relation to the Company: controlling entity acting in concert with R.F.G., a.s. under Section 66b (1) and Section 66b (2) (b) of the Commercial Code

FINITRADING, a.s. was the controlling entity and also the sole shareholder of R.F.G., a.s. throughout 2008.

 

R.F.G., a.s., based at nám. Svobody 526, 739 61 Třinec, corporate ID: 63079658

Relation to the Company: controlling entity acting in concert with FINITRADING a.s. under Section 66b (1) and Section 66b (2) (b) of the Commercial 

Code

B. Entities Controlled by the Company 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. based at Průmyslová 1000, 739 70 Třinec-Staré Město, corporate ID: 18050646

Relation to the Company: entity controlled by the Company as the majority shareholder under Section 66a (3) (a) of the Commercial Code and by the 

Company acting in concert with FINITRADING a.s. under Section 66a (4) of the Commercial Code

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. based at Průmyslová 1000, 739 70 Třinec-Staré Město, corporate ID: 25872940 

Relation to the Company: entity controlled by the Company as the majority shareholder under Section 66a (3) (a) of the Commercial Code and by the 

Company acting in concert with TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. under Section 66a (4) of the Commercial Code

Moravia Steel AG Zug based at Oberallmendstrasse 16, 6302 Zug, Switzerland 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MORAVIA STEEL IBÉRIA, S.A. based at Campo Grande, 35 – 9. A, P-1700 Lisbon, Portugal 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MORAVIA GOEL TRADE d.o.o. “in liquidation” based at Perkovčeva 48, 104 30 Samobor, Croatia 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA s.r.l. based at via Niccolini 26, 20154 Milan, Italy 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENIJA d.o.o. based at Valvazorjeva 14, 3000 Celje, Slovenia

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

CMC – TRINEC Stahlhandel, GmbH based at Cliev 19, 515 15 Kürten, Germany 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

9.
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TRINEC – CMC LIMITED based at Bradwall Court, Bradwall Road, Sandbach, Cheshire, CW11 1 GE, England 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. based at Kříženeckého nám. 322, 15 200 Prague 5, corporate ID: 41693311 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

Barrandov Studio a.s. based at Kříženeckého nám. 322/5, 152 00 Prague 5, Hlubočepy, corporate ID 28172469 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary 

Barrandov Lands a.s. based at Kříženeckého nám. 322/5, Prague 5, corporate ID: 27225674

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MS – Slovensko s.r.o. based at Palisády 56, 811 06 Bratislava, Slovakia

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

MORAVIA STEEL ISRAEL Ltd. based at 23 Efal St., Petach Tikva 49511, P.O.B. 3286, Israel

Relation to the Company: subsidiary

Beskydská golfová, a.s. based at Ropice 415, 739 56, corporate ID: 25352920 

Relation to the Company: subsidiary 

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s. based at Dolní 100, Prostějov, 797 11, corporate ID: 26955342

Relation to the Company: subsidiary 

MORAVIA STEEL POLAND Sp. z o.o. based at Bobrecka 27, Cieszyn 43-400, Poland

Relation to the Company: subsidiary 

Relations between the Company and the above-mentioned entities controlled by the Company are described in a report on related parties for each of these 

controlled entities, each of which prepares a report on relations between related parties separately and details its transactions with the Company for the 

given reporting period. Th e Company incurred no damage in connection with these relations.

II. Description of Relations 

A. Relations between Related Parties 

a)  Relations in terms of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that arose during the reporting period between the Company and FINITRADING a.s. as 

the controlling entity are disclosed in Part B of this Section.

a)  Relations in terms of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that arose between the Company and R.F.G., a.s. as the controlling entity are disclosed in 

Part C of this Section. 

B. Description of Relations of the Company with the Controlling Entity FINITRADING a.s.

B.1. Sales 

Th e Company eff ected no sales of goods to the controlling entity during the reporting period.

B.2. Purchases 

B.2.1. Framework Purchase Contract No. S-040047

Framework Contract No. S-040047 eff ective for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2009 was concluded by the Company and the control-

ling entity on 22 November 2004. Under the contract, the controlling entity makes a long-term undertaking to supply lump Zaporizhia aglo-ore to the 

Company. Th e framework contract was implemented in 2008 on the basis of Purchase Contract No. S-070005, i.e. Amendment No. 3 of 31 January 2008, 

and Purchase Contract No. S-080005 of 31 March 2008, which is valid until 31 January 2009. During 2008, purchase prices were specifi ed in the form of 

amendments to the above-mentioned purchase contracts.

In the reporting period, the total purchase price paid by the Company for the supply of the aglo-ore based on these contracts amounted to CZK 2,265,180 

thousand excluding VAT.
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B.2.2. Framework Purchase Contract No. S-040048

Framework Contract No. S-040048 eff ective for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2009 was concluded by the Company and the controlling 

entity on 22 November 2004. Under the contract, the controlling entity makes a long-term undertaking to supply lump Zaporizhia ore to the Company. 

Th e framework contract was implemented in 2008 on the basis of Purchase Contract No. S-070006, i.e. Amendment No.3 of 31 January 2008, and Purchase 

Contract No. S-080006 of 31 March 2008, which is valid until 31 January 2009. During 2008, purchase prices were specifi ed in the form of amendments 

to the above-mentioned purchase contracts.

In the reporting period, the total price paid by the Company for the supply of the lump ore based on these contracts amounted to CZK 491,576 thousand 

excluding VAT.

B.2.3. Purchase Contract No. S-070007 and Purchase Contract No. S-080007

Th e Company purchased Krivbas aglo-ore from the controlling entity pursuant to Amendment No. 4 concluded on 31 January 2008 as part of Purchase 

Contract No. S-070007 and pursuant to Purchase Contract No. S-080007 of 31 March 2008. Purchase Contract No. S-080007 was concluded for a defi nite 

period of time until 31 January 2009.

In the reporting period, the total purchase price paid by the Company to the controlling entity for the supply of the Krivbas aglo-ore based on the pur-

chase contracts amounted to CZK 626,386 thousand excluding VAT.

B.2.4. Purchase Contract No. S-080010

Pursuant to Purchase Contract No. S-080010 of 31 October 2008, the controlling entity realised supplies of the Jakovlevská aglo-ore to the Company. Th e 

Purchase Contract is signed for a defi nite period of time until 30 April 2009.

In the reporting period, the total purchase price paid by the Company to the controlling entity for the supply of the Jakovlevská aglo-ore based on the 

Purchase Contract amounted to CZK 30,534 thousand excluding VAT.

B.2.5. Purchase Contract No. S-080008

Pursuant to Purchase Contract No. S-080008 of 20 August 2008, the controlling entity realised supplies of unsorted aglo-ore to the Company. Th e Pur-

chase Contract is signed for a defi nite period of time until 30 September 2009.

In the reporting period, the total purchase price paid by the Company to the controlling entity for the supply of unsorted aglo-ore based on the Purchase 

Contract amounted to CZK 4,130 thousand excluding VAT.

B.3. Other Contractual Arrangements 

No other contractual arrangements in terms of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code were entered into between the Company and FINITRADING a.s. 

during the reporting period.

B.4. Other Legal Acts 

No other signifi cant legal acts in terms of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code were implemented by the Company in the interest of the controlling 

entity – FINITRADING a.s. during the reporting period.

B.5. Other Measures 

No other measures were adopted by the Company at the initiative or in the interest of the controlling entity FINITRADING a.s. during the reporting 

period.

B. 6. Overall Assessment of Relations to the Controlling Entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

Th e report highlights all material contracts entered into during the reporting period and the total amount of received supplies and provided counter-

performance between the Company and the controlling entity. Th e analyses of received performance and provided counter-performance, as disclosed in 

Section B, have shown that the performance was provided under standard business terms and conditions. Th e goods are supplied for arm’s length prices 

established by reference to market prices. Th e Company incurred no damage in connection with its relations with the controlling entity.

C. Description of Relations of the Company with the Controlling Entity R.F.G., a.s.

In the reporting period, no purchases or sales of goods or services were eff ected between the Company and R.F.G., a.s. No other signifi cant legal acts or 

measures in terms of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code were implemented in the interest of the controlling entity – R.F.G. a.s. during the reporting 

period.

In Třinec on 5 March 2009

 ...................................................  ...................................................

 Lenka Blažková  Krzysztof Ruciński

 Chairwoman of the Board of Directors Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors 


